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Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for 

the quarter and half year ended 30th September 2024 of REC Limited pursuant to the 

Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

The Board of Directors, 

REC Limited 

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, Lodi Road, 

New Delhi -110003 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited standalone financial 

results of REC Limited ("the Company") for the quarter and half year ended 30th 

September 2024 ("the Statement")' being submitted by the Company pursuant to 

the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of 

the SE BI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended ("listing Regulations"). 

2. This Sta tement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and 

approved by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accord ance 

with the recognition and measurement principles la id down in the Indian 

Accounting Standard - 34 ' Interim Financial Reporting' (Ulnd AS 34"), prescribed 

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Ac!") and read 

with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India. Our responsibi lity is to issue a conclusion on the Statement based 

on our review. 



• 

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standa rd on 

Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information 

Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform 

the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of 

material misstatement. A review of interim financ ial information consists of m aking 

inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters and 

applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in 

scope than an audit conducted in accordance with standards on auditing and 

conseq uently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware 

of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accord ingly, we do not 

express an audit opinion. 

4. Based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing has come 

to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement of 

unaudited standalone financial results, prepared in accordance with recogniti on 

and measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting 

Standards Clnd AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, as amended, read with 

relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, has not disclosed the info rmation req uired to be disclosed in 

terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI 

(listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it conta ins any materia l 

misstatement. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 167453 

UDIN: 24167453BKBGEC1763 

Place: Delhi 

Date: October 26, 2024 

For MIs 5CV & Co. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration:00023SN/NS00089 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 087010 

UDIN: 24087010BKBOGV2276 



KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Cha rtered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

Laxmi Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-ll0092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants 

8-41, Panchsheel Enclave, 

New Delhi-UOOl7. 

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the 

quarter and half year ended 30th September 2024 of REC limited pursuant to the Regulation 

33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEel (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

The Board of Directors, 

REC Limited 

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, ladi Road, 

New Delhi -110003 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited consolidated financial 

results of REC Limited ("the Parent Company") and its subsidiary (the parent company 

and its su bsidiary together refe rred to as "the Group") for the quarter and half year ended 

30th September 2024 (lithe Statement")' being submitted by the Parent Company 

pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 

63(2) of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulat ions, 2015, as 

amended ("listing Regulations") . 

2. This Statement, which is t he responsibility of the Parent Company's Management and 

approved by the Parent Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance 

with the recognition and measurement principles la id down in the Indian Accounting 

Standard - 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34")' prescribed under section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (lithe Act") and read w ith relevant rules issued 

thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility 

is to express a conclusion on the statements based on our review. 



3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review 

Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 

Independent Auditor of the Entity" , issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 

assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review of 

interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons 

responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review 

procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 

with standards on auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that 

we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

We also performed procedures in accordance with the Circular No. 

CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated March 29, 2019 issued by the SEBI under Regulation 33(8) 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as 

amended, to the extent applicable. 

4. The statement includes result of following entities: 

1. Parent Company: 

REC Limited 

2. Subsidiary: 

REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited 

5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 

above and based on the consideration of the review report of other auditor referred to 

in Paragraph 6 below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that 

the accompanying Statement of unaudited consolidated financial results, prepared in 

accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable 

Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, as 

amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed 

in terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material 

misstatement. 



Other matters 

6. We did not review the interim financial resu lts of the subsidiary included in the 

consol idated unaudited fi nancial results, whose interim financial results reflect total 

assets of ~ 886.52 crores and cash inflows(net) of ~ 16.39 crores for the half yea r ended 

30th September 2024, tota l revenue of ~ 163.19 Crore and 219.72 crores, total net profit 

after tax of '( 83.22 crores & '( 100.96 crores and total comprehensive income of ~ 83.22 

crores & '( 100.96 crores for the quarter ended 30th September 2024 and half yea r ended 

30th September 2024 respectively, as considered in the consolidated unaudited financial 

results. These interim financial results have been reviewed by other auditor whose Report 

has been furnished to us by the Management and our conclusion on the Stateme n t, in so 

far as it re lates to the amounts and disclosu res included in respect of the subsidiary is 

based solely on the Report of the other auditor and the procedures performed b y us as 

stated in paragraph 3 above. 

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name · 5aurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 167453 

UDIN : 241674S3BKBGED5354 

Place: Delhi 

Date: October 26, 2024 

For MIs SCV & Co. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration:000235N/N500089 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 087010 

UDIN : 24087010BKBOGW6063 
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Annexure C 

Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(7) & 52(7 A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ended 3()1h September, 2024 

A. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds: 

fin Crores 

Mode of Fund 
If 8 is Yes, 

Raising 
then specify 

Name of (Public Type of Date of Any the purpose of 
Remarks, 

the Issuer ISIN issues/ Private instru raising Amount . Funds deviation for which the 

placement) ment funds Raised utilized (Yesl No) funds were if any 

utilized 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

REC Limited INE020B08FG9 
Private 

NeD 18-07-2024 3,000.00 NO 
Placement 

3,000.00 NA 

REC Limited INE020B08FF1 
Private 

NeD 
Placement 

18-07-2024 3,000.00 3,000.00 NO NA 

REC Limited INE020B08FH7 
Private 

NeD 
Placement 

09-08-2024 2,000.00 2,000.00 NO NA 

REC Limited INE020B08FA2 
Priva te NeD 

Placement 
27·08·2024 2,675.00 2,675 .00 NO NA 

REC Limited INE020B08 FI 5 
Private 

NeD 
Placement 

27-08·2024 2,145.00 2,145.00 NO NA 

Total 12,820.00 12,820.00 

B. Statement of deviation! variation in use of Issue proceeds: 

Particulars Remarks 

Name of listed enti ty REC LIMITED 
Mode of fund raising 

"" "f'. LIM Pl::Islie iSSl::let Private placement 

Type of instrument /Cnanc J. "" Y { '<' '{ 0' Non-conve rtible 5eruritie~ 80.'-£0. 

:F'~/ '" ~ ~De,". :' ;N~~ >i De,n1'!?2 " 0 • ,.~ & ~9 ... --f-
• 

l'A ~;r .. ~ . _ ,,~~~ 



Parti culars Remarks 

Date of raising fun ds Please refer Col. 5 above table 

Amount raised ~ 12,820.00 crores 

Report filed for quarter ended 30-09-2024 

Is there a deviation! variation in use of funds raised? No 

Whether any approval is required to va ry the objects of the issue stated in the prospectus! offer 
document? 

If yes, details of the approval so required? 

Date of approval N.A 
Explanation for the deviation! variation 

Comments of the audit committee after review 

Comments of the aud itors, if any 

Objects for which funds have been raised and whe re there has been a deviation! variation, in the following table: 

Original Modified Original Modified Funds Amount of deviation! variation for the quarter Remarks, if 

object object, if allocation allocation, if utilised according to applicable object any 

any any (t in Crores and in % ) 

------- NA ---

Deviation could mean: 

a. Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds have been raised . 

b. Deviation in the amount of funds actua lly utilized as against what was originally disclosed. 
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KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

Laxmi Nagar District Center, 
New Delhi·l10092. 

scv & CO. LLP. 
Chartered Accounta nts 
8·41, Panchsheel Enclave, 
New Delhi- 110017. 

Review Report on Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements for the period l't April 
2024 to 30th September 2024 of REC limited. 

TO, 
The Board of Directors, 
REC Limited 
Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, Lodi Road, 
New Delhi - 110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements o f REC 
Limited ('the Company') which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 30th September 2024, and the re lated 
Stat ement of Profit and loss (including t he Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the half year ended 30!h September 204 and 
a summary of material accounting policies (together hereinafter referred as "Special Purpose 
Standalone Interim Financial Statements") as requ ired by Indian Accounting Standard 34 ' In terim 
Financial Reporting' (" Ind AS 34"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements. 

These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 
Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared 
in all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian 
Accounting Standard-34 'Interim Financial Reporting' (" Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 
genera lly accepted in India. These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements have been 
prepared solely for the purpose of inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising 
programmes of the Company and its Holding Company ("Power Finance Corporation limited") . 

Scope of review 

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements in 
accordance w ith the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial 
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Th is standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 
assurance as to whether the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements are free of material 



Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements are not prepa r ed, in 
all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian 
Accounting Standard 34 ' Interim Financial Reporting' (" Ind AS 34" ) prescribed under Section 1 33 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 
genera lly accepted in India. 

This report is intended solely for the use of t he Company for the purpose of inclusion of fi nancia l 
information in respect of fund ra ising programmes of t he Company and its Hold ing Company t hereto 
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume 
any liability or duty of ca re for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is sh own 
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 
Membership Number: 167453 

UDIN:24167453BKBGEE8997 

Date: October 26, 2024 
Place: Delhi 

For MIs SCV & Co. LLP. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration:000235N/NS00089 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 

Designation: Partner 
Membership Number: 087010 

UDIN:24087010BKBOGX3279 



REC Limited 
R~Si Sl~.~d Office _ Cor~4, SCOPE Complu, 7, l Qdhi R~d, New o..lhi - 110003, CIN: U OIOI Dll9MG0IOOS095 

B~b.nce Shed u . t 30th September 2024 
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REC Limited 
lI.pOI .. , .. d Office· Cor ..... SCOPE COM pi" .. 7. LocIh; llood. New o..lhi· l 1000J. C1N: L40101 0LI969G01 00SMS 

Sll temenl of Prof il l nd Loss for the period ended 30th ~ptember 2024 
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REC limited 
R<lgistu ed Offiu - CorM, SCOPE Complex, 7. l odhi RO.ld, New Del hi· 110000. CIN: l4010101l%9GOIOOS095 

Statement of Cash Flows for I.he period ended 30th Sep 2024 

l' .. rl icul.lrJ 

A. C.l5h Flow fn)m Opeuling Acti vi liu: 

Net Profit before Tax 

Adjuli ln' f nlS for: 

I. Loss! (Qlin) on derecogni tion 01 Propert)'. Planl and Equipm'.'nl (nel) 

2. loss! (Gain) on dererognition of AsselS hdd for sale (nel) 

3. Depr~i~tion to: Amorti:ution 

~ . Imp~ir1Tlent 1000ses on FinandallnslrumenlS 

5. Loss! (Gain) on Fa ir Value O'angcs (n<'l) 

11. Effcclive Interest R~te (EIR) in respect of loan Asse ls and Ikmowings 

7. Interest on Commcrda l P~per 

II. Unre"lised Foreign f.xclldnge Tr~nslalion lossl (Qlin) 

<I. Interesl on In"l'stments 

Opeuting !'rolitl (lou) before Ch.ngu in Oper.ting Asoets to: li.bitities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on .ccount of : 

I. Lo.m Assets 

2. Dcrivatil"6 

3. Other Financial.ln.d Non- Fin.lnci~t Assets 

4. Olher Financial.nd Non· Fi .... ncial Liabilities '" J>roo,'isions 

Cuh flow ftom Oper.l tions 

I. Income Tax Paid (induding TOS) 

Net C.ash Flo.v from Opeuting Aetivitie, 

II . C.uh Flow from Investing Activitie. 

I. Sale of I'roperl)', Plant &. Equipment 

2. Sak> of as,..IS hdd for $;II" 

3. Investment in I'Toperty, PI~nt to: Equip"""'l (incl. CWIP '" C~pit~1 Ad\'~nces) 
4. Investment in Inlangible Assels (including intangible assels WIder dev",lopmenl '" 

C,' pital AdvJI'et's) 

5. Flnanet' COSI.i Cdpil~lised 
/>, ..,,, Iel (1n""stml~\I) in Equity Shares 

7. ~edemptionl (Im'('$lment) in High Qua~ty liquid Assets (HQLAs) (nl'l) 

H. I<cd"mplionl (Inl'('51"",nl) in Debl Securities other than HQLAs (nel) 

Net Cuh Flow fron' Investing Activili es 

C. CaJh Flow from Financing Aetivi tie, 

1. I~sue' (Redemption) of Rup<. .... Oebl Securities (net) 

2. Issue' ([(cdcmption) of Commercidll'aper (11<'1) 

J. I<"ising! (Repayments) of Rupee Term Lo.~ns! WCOL from B.lnksl Fb (net ) 
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REC Limited 
Rep , lued Offi«. Coro-l, SCOrE Comp!e .. 7, Lodhi RNd. New ~!hi· 110003, CIN: UDI01Dl1969G0100SO'lS 

S t:o.tem oe nt of Chang" in Equity for Ihoe period oe nded 30th September 2024 
A t'l~i'y .h~ .. upi'~1 

r.rtirulo .. A,.I 3D-09·202~ 
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REC Limited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003 
C1N: L40]0]DL1969GOI005095 

Notes to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 

REC Li mited ("REel' or the "Company") was incorporated in the yea r 1969. The Company is d orn idlcd 

in India and is limited by shares, hav ing its registered offi ce and principa l place of business at Corc-4, 

SCOPE Complex, 7, Lod hi Road, New Delhi-l 10003, India. The books of accoun ts are main t,lined at th e 

Corpora te Office s ituated a t Plot no. 1-4, Secto r-29, Guru gram, Ha rya na, in addition to the registered 

office of the Company. The Company has off ices sp read ac ross the cou ntry, mainl y in the S tale Capita ls 

and one training ccnter at Hyderabad . 

The Company is a Govern ment of India En terp rise engaged in extending financial ass istance ac ross the 

powe r sector va lue chain and is a Systemica lly Impo rtant (Non-Depos it Accepting o r Holding) Non­

Ban king Finance Company (NBFC) registered w ith Rese rve Bank of Ind ia (RBI). Being a n NBFe. the 

company is regulated by Reserve Bank of Ind ia. 

The compan y has been accorded w ith the s la tus o f a 'Mahara ma' Cen tral Public Sector Enterprise by 

the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Ministry of Finance. 

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC arc 

interes t-bea ring loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and 

Priva te secto r fo r a ll segmen ts of Power infras tructure. During FY 2022-23, REC has also diversified into 

the Non-Power Infrastruchlre sector comprising Roads & Expressways, Metro Rail, Airports, IT 

Comm unication, Socia l and Commercia l Infrastructure (Educa tional Ins titution, Hospitals), Paris and 

Electro-Mechanical (E&M) wo rks in respect of various other sectors like Steel, Refinery, etc. 

The sha res of the Company are listed on Nationa l Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. 

Further, various debt secu rities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges 

2. Basis of Preparation 

These Specia l Purpose Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared for the pu rpose of inclusion 

o f financial in fo rmation in respect of fund rais ing programmes of the Company and its Holding 

Company and complies with the measurement principles laid down unde r Ind AS notified under the 

Companies (Ind ian Accounti ng Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provis ions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and other appl icable regu latory no rms / guideli nes including those issued by RBI. 

These financia l s tatements fo r the period ended 30th Sep tember 2024 we re autho rized and a pproved by 

the Board o f Directors on 26th October 2024. 



3. Material Accounting Policies 

The materia l accounting policies applied in preparation of the fin ancial statements are as g i v en be low: 

3.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on going conce rn bas is following accrual system of 

accounting on historica l cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities w hi ch ti re 

measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. These policies ha ve b een appli ed 

consistentl y for all the periods presented in the fin ancial statements. 

Fll ndional and presentation currency 

The fin ancial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional currency of 

the Company. 

3.2 Income recognition 

Illtcrest income 

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the orde r of (i ) cos ts 

and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue interes t 

including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted firs t, excc pt for 

credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only afte r the 

complete recovery of other costs, ex penses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interes t including 

interes t tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settl ement (OTS)/ lnsolvency and Bankruptcy Code 

( !BC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recove ry 

thereafter, towards interes t and other charges, if an y. 

For fin ancial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effecti ve interes t 

ra le (EIR), i.e. the rale that exactly di scounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life o f 

the fin ancial asset to the net carrying amount of the financia l assets. 

Interest on financial assets subsequentl y measured at fair value through profit and loss is re cogni zed on 

an acc rual basis in acco rdance with the te rms of the respective contract and is disclosed septHil te ly 

unde r the head interes t income. 

As a matter of prudence, income on credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received o r 

on accrual basis when expected rea li sation is higher th an the loan amount outstanding. 

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowe rs is recognized on receipt of entire inte rest 

amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the res pective contract and is netted aga inst the 

corresponding interest income. 



Dividend illcome 

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bod ies and units of mutual funds is taken into accoun t on 

accrua l basis when right to receive payment is establi shed. 

Prov ided that in case of final di vidend, the ri ght to rece ive payment shall be considered as cs til blishcd 

only upon approval of the di vidend by the shareholders in the Annual Genera l Meeting. 

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measu red at fair value th rough profit and loss is rL'Cognised 

separa tely under the head 'Dividend Income'. 

Ollter services 

Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to ErR, are accounted for on 

accrua l basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Company in the yea r of receipt. 

3.3 Borrowi_ng costs 

Borrowing costs consist of inte rest and other costs that the Company incurred in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquis ition and/ o r c o ns tructi on 

o f a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready fo r its in tended use, a rc 

capitali zed. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substanti al period to get ready fur its 

intended use. 

A ll othe r bo rrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual bas is as per the 

effecti ve interest rate method . 

3.4 Ea rnings per share 

Basic ea rnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareho lde rs (after deducting att ributable taxes) by the weighted average numbe r of equity shares 

o utstanding during the period . 

To ca lcu late diluted ea rnin gs per share, the net profit o r loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareho lders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period a re adjusted 

for the effects of a ll di lutive potential equity shares. 

3.5 Foreign Cu rrency Translation 

Foreign currency transactions alld balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functi ona l currency of the Company using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreig n exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlemen t o f such transactions and the rc­

measurement of monetary items denominated in fo reign currency at period-end exchange rates arc 

recognized in the Statement of Profit o r Loss. Howeve r, for the long-term monetary items recogn ized in 

the financial s tatements before 1 Ap ril 201 8, such ga ins and losses are accumu lated in a "Fo reig n 

of 



Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (tr <1 nsl<1 ted 

using the exchange rates at the transaction date). 

3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Recogllition and i"itial meas urement 

Land 

Land held for use is initially recogni zed at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be d ete rm ined, 

related carrying amounts are not amortized. 

Land a lso includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier class ified as 

finance lease and is amortized over the lease term. 

Other Tangible assets 

prE other than land is initially recognized at acqui sition cost or construction cos t, including any costs 

d irectly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to b e capable o f 

o perating in the manner intended by the Company's management. 

Subsequent costs are incl uded in the asset's carrying amount or recogni zed as a separate asset, as 

appro priate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item w ill fl ow to 

the Company beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of prE are recogni zed in the StCl temcnt 

of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Slilisl'qllent measurement (depreciat ioll method, use/Ill lives, residual value, and impairme"t) 

PPE a re subsequently meas ured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation on PPE is p rovided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the asse ts as 

prescribed under Part 'e' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged fo r the full month if the asset is in usc 

for mo re than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided QO 

100'X •. 

The res iduaJ values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each fin ancial 

year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment wheneve r events or changes in circumstances 

ind ica te that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

D!:-recognition 

An item of PPE and any significant part initia lly recognized is derecognized upon disposal o r when no 

future economic benefits are ex pected from its use or disposal. An y gain o r loss aris ing o n de­

recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

ca rrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss . 

Capital Work-in-Progress 

The cos t of PPE under cons truction at the reporting date is d isclosed as 'Capital wo rk-ill-progress.' The 



are deducted in arriving at the pu rchase price. Advances paid for the acq uisitionl construction of PPE 

whi ch are outs tanding at the balance sheet date a re classified under 'Capital Advances.' 

3.7 Intangible assets 

RccDx"ition alld initial measurement 

Intang ible asse ts are initially measured at cos t. Such assets are recognized where it is probable Ih <l l Ihe 

future econom ic benefits attributable to the assets wi ll flow to the company. 

Subsequent meaSlIremellt (alllortizatioll method, lise fill lives and residual vallie) 

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a s traight li ne basis ove r the estimated 

useful li ves, and a possible impai rment is assessed if the re is an indication that the intangible asset may 

be impaired . Residual values and useful li ves for all intangible assets are rev iewed at each rcporting 

date. Changes, if any, are accou nted fo r as changes in accou nting estimates. Management estimates the 

useful li fe of intangible assets to be five years. 

Intangible Assets IInder Development 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangi ble assets is carried <IS 

' Int<l ngible <lsse ts under development' till they a re ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the 

acqu isition/ development of intangible assets which are outs tanding at the balance sheet da te arc 

classified under 'Capital Advances'. 

Daccognitioll of flltangibfe Assets 

An intangible asset is derecogn ized on disposa l, or when no future economic benefits are ex p ected from 

use or disposa l. Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset, measu red as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the ca rryi ng amoun t of the asset are recognized in thl' 

Sta tement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecogn ized . 

3.8 Lease accounting: 

Right -of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all former ope rating leascs arc 

recogn ised excep t for those identified as short-term o r low-va lue lease. 

An assessment at contract incep tion is made whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A IC[lsc is 

defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, th at conveys the right to use an asset (the unde rl y ing assc t) 

for a period of time in exchange for conside ration'. 

To apply this defin ition, the con tract is assessed fo r three key eva lua tions which are whether: 

the con trac t contains an iden tifi ed asset, wh ich is either explicitly identified in the contract or 

implicitl y specified by being identified at the time the asse t is made available 

rig ht to obtain substantially a ll of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset th roughout 

the period of use, conSidering its rights withi n the defined scope of the contract 

rig ht to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use and right to direct ' how 

and fo r what purpose' the asset is used throughout the pe riod of use. 

At lease commencement date, a right-of-use asset and a lease liability is 

sheet. The right-of- is measured at c 
Cnand..l. h':."v ;?~" 
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asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in ad va nce of the lease commen cement dat e 

(net of any incenti ves received ). 

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stra ight- line basis from the lease commencemen t dtl tc to the 

ea rlie r of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The right-o l-usc 

asset is also assessed for impairment when such indicators exist. 

At the commencement date, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lea se p<lymcnts 

unpaid at that date, d iscounted using the in terest ra te implicit in the lease if that ra te is readily ilva il tlblc 

or the Company's incremental bo rrow ing rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease li ability are made up of fixed pay rnents 

(including in substance fi xed ), va ri able payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be 

paya ble under a residual va lue guarantee and pay ments arisi ng from options reasonably certain to be 

exercised . 

Su bsequent to initi al measurement, the liability w ill be reduced fo r payments made and increased for 

interes t. It is rerneasured to refl ect any reassessment or mod ifica tion, o r if there are changes in in­

substance fixed payments. 

When the lease lia bility is remeasured, the co rrespond ing adjustment is reflected in the right -of-usc 

asset, o r p rofi t and 1055 if the right-of-use asset is alread y reduced to ze ro. 

3.9 Assets held for sale 

Assets a re classified as Held for Sale if thei r carry ing amoun t will be recove red principall y throug h a 

sa le transaction rather than through continu ing use and the sale is highly proba ble. A sa le is considered 

as highly p robable when such asse ts have been decided to be sold by the Company; are a va il ab le (o r 

immediate sa le in their present condition; are being acti vely marke ted for sale at a price and the sil le has 

been agreed or is expected to be concl uded within one yea r of the date of classifica tion. Such assets arc 

measured il tlower of carry ing amount or fai r value less selling costs. 

Assets held for sa le are p resented sepa rately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and arc no t 

depreciated o r amortised while they are classified as held fo r sa le. 

3.10 Financiallnstruments 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financia l asset of one entity and a fi nancia l 

li ability or equity instrument of another enti ty. 

I lli l ial recognilion alld measlI remell l 

Fi nancia l assets and financial li abilities are recognized when the Company becomes a pa rty to the 

contractual p rovisions of the fina ncial instru ment and are measured in itially at fai r value adjusted by 

tra nsactions costs, except for those carried at fair val ue through profit or loss which are measured 

initially at fair val ue. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described 

below. 



For the purpose of subsequent measuremen t, financial assets are classified into the following categariL'S 

upon initial recognition: 

• Amortized cost 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

• Fi nancial assets a t fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

• Inveshnents in eq uity shares of subsidiaries and jOi nt ventures (carried a t cost in accordance wi th 

Ind AS 27) 

All financial assets except fo r those at FVTPL or at FVOCI are subject to review fo r impairlTlcnt at least 

at each re porting date to identify whether there is any objective ev idence that a financia I asset or a 

gro up of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied to e,lch 

ca tego ry of financial assets, which are described below. 

Amortized cost 

A fin ancial asset is measured a t amortized cost usi ng Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the 

following conditions are met: 

a) the financia l asset is held within a business model whose objecti ve is to ho ld financial asse ls tn 

coll ect contractua l cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc so lely 

payments of principal and interest on the principa l amount ou tstanding. 

Impa irment allowance (expected credit loss) is recogni zed on financial assets carried at amortized cost. 

Modification of cash flows 

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asse t a re renegotiated or otherwise modified, and thl' 

renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financia l asset, the Company 

recalculates the gross carry ing amount of the financial asset and recogni zes a modification gain or loss 

in profit or loss. The gross ciHrying amou nt of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present 

val ue o f the renegotiated or modified contractua l cash flows that are discoun ted at the financial asset's 

origina l e ffecti ve interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carry ing amount of the mod ificd 

financia l asset and are amorti zed over the remaining te rm of the modi fied financial asset. 

fillallcial assets at FVTPL 

Financia l assets at FVTPL include financia l assets that e ither do not meet the crite ria for amortized cos t 

classifi ca tion or are equity instruments held fo r trading or that meet ce rtain conditions and arc 

des ignated at FVTPL upo n initi a l recognition. All deriva tive financial instruments a lso fall in to this 

category, except for those deSignated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge 

accounting requirements ma y apply. Assets in this ca tegory are measured at fair va lue w ith gai ns or 

losses recognized in profit o r loss. The fa ir va lues of financial assets in this category are de termined by 

reference to active market transactions o r using a va luation technique where no active market exists. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embed ded deriva ti ve is a com ponent of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non -de riv ative host 

cont ract w ith the effect that some of the cash flows2,j1l~!!J:' 
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exchange ra te, or other variab le, provided that, in the case of a non-financial va riable, it is n o t specific to 

a party to the contract 

Derivatives embedded in a ll host contracts are accounted for as separate deri vatives and recorded at 

fair va lue if their economic characteri stics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts 

o r if the .embedded derivative feature leve rages the exposure and the host contracts are n ot held for 

trad ing o r deSignated at fair va lue though profit or loss. These embedded deriva ti ves are nlcaslIrcd at 

fair va lue with changes in fai r va lue recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effecb vc hedging 

instruments. 

Fillal/cial assets at FVOCI 

FVOC I fin ancia l assets comprise of equity ins truments measured at fair value. An equity in vestment 

class ified as FVOCI is initia ll y measured at fa ir va lue p lus transacti on cos ts. Gains and losses arc 

recogni zed in Other Comprehensive lncome (OCI) and reported with in the FVOCI reserve with in 

equ ity, except for d ividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. The re is no recycling of such 

gains and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecogni tion of the investmcnt . 

However, the Company may transfe r the same within equity. 

De-recogllitioll of fillallcial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Company derecogn izes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and 

cond itions have been renegoti ated to the extent that, substan tia lly, it becomes a new loan, with the 

di fference recognized as a derecognition gajn or loss, to the extent that an impairmen t loss has not 

al rcady been recorded . 

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

Financial asse ts (o r whe re applicab le, a part of financial asset or part of a group of s imilar financial 

assets) a re derecognized (Le. removed from the Company's 'balance sheet) when the contractual ri ghts 

to receive the cash flows from the financial asset ha ve expired, or when the fi nancia l asse t and 

substantia lly all the risks and rewards are transfe rred. The Company also derecogni zes the fin ancial 

asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecogni tion. 

Classification alld subsequent meaSllrement offina/lcialliabilities 

Financial li abilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effecti ve interest method, 

except fo r financial li abilities held for trading o r designated at FVTPL, that are ca rried subsequently <I t 

fa ir va lue wi th gains o r losses recogni zed in profit or loss . All host contracts which are in nature of a 

financial liabil ity and separated from embedded deriva ti ve are measured at amo rtised cost lIsi ng the 

effecti ve inte rest method . 

Dcrecogllil ion of finallcial liabilities 

A tinancia lliabili ty is derecognized when the obl iga tion under the liability is discharged or cance led o r 

expi res. When an existing financia l liabili ty is rep laced by another from the same le nde r on 

substanti ally different terms o r the terms o f an ex isting liabil ity are subs tantially modified , sll ch an 

or loss. 



/-ledge accounting 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet a ll of the following requirements: 

there is an economic rela tionship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument 

the effect o f cred it risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic 

relatio nship 

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of 11K' 

hedged item that the Company actuall y hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument th at the 

Company actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

Al l deriva ti ve financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initi a ll y at (nir 

vn lue and reported subsequently at fai r va lue at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is 

effecti ve, changes in the fair value of derivatives des ignated as hedg ing instruments in cash flow hedges 

arc recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge rese rve til 

equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit o r loss. 

AI the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any ga in o r loss previously recognised in o the r 

compre hensive income is reclass ified from equity to pro fit or loss and presented as a reciassificn tion 

adjustment within other comprehensive income. 

At the inception of each hedg ing relationship, the Company fo rmally designates and documents the 

hedge relationship, in accordance with the Company's risk management objective and s trateg ies. The 

documentation includes iden tification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the natu re of risk(s) 

being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging rela ti onship meets the hedging effecti veness 

requirements. 

flli,. Value Hedges 

[n line with the recognition of change in the fai r va lue of the hedging instruments in the Statement of 

Profit & l oss, the change in the fair va lue of the ryed ged item attributable to the risk hedged is 

recogn ised in the Statement of Profit and l oss. Such changes are made to the ca rrying amoun t of the 

hedged item and are adjusted in Effecti ve Inte rest Rate in the period when the hedging ins trumen t 

ceases to ex it. If the hedged item is derecognised, the una mortised fair va lue is recognised immediately 

in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3,11 Impairment of financial assets 

Loall assets 

The Company fo llows a ' three-stage' model for impairment in the fo rm of Ex pected Credit Loss (ECL) 

based on changes in credit quality since initi al recognition as summa rised below: 

• Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk s ince initial 

recognition or that ha ve low cred it risk at the repo rting date. 

• Stage 2 includes Joan assets that have had a signi ficant increase in credit risk s ince initial recognition 

bu t that do not have objective evidence of impairment. 

• Stage 3 includes Joan assets that ha ve objective ev idence o f impai rment at the reporting date. 

The Ex pected Credit loss (ECl) is measured at 12-month ECl fo r Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECl 

and Loss G iven 



Probabili ty of Default (PO) • The PD rep resents the likelihood of the borrowe r default ing 0 11 its 

obl iga tion ei ther over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LCD represents the Company's expectation of loss given th at a default 

occurs. LC D is ex pressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that w ill aCllI i1 ll y be 

losl post recove ries in case of a default. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amoun ts, including the principal outstand ing, in te rest 

accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company ex pects to be owed at the time of defau lt . 

Forward -looking economic info rmation is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PO, EAD 

a nd LC D. The assumptions underl ying the ex pected credit loss are monito red and revie wed on nil 

ongoing basis. 

fillflllcial assets otller tllall Loalls 

In respect of its o ther financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financinl nssets 

has increased significantly s ince ini tial recognition. If the cred it risk has not increased sign ificantly since 

in it ial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equa l to 12-month ex pected 

cred it losses, else at an amount equal to the li fe time ex pected cred it losses. 

To ma ke that assessment, the Company compares the ri sk of a default occurring on the financial asset as 

<l Ithe balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financia l asset as at the date of init in l 

recog nition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable in formation, that is avn ilnb le 

w itho ut undue cost or effort that is ind icative o f signi ficant increases in cred it risk s ince in itin l 

recog nition. The Company assumes that the cred it risk on a fin ancial asset has not incrc.1scd 

significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the 

ba lance sheet date. 

W I'ik-offs 

Fi nancia l assets are wri tten off either partially or in thei r entirety onl y when the Company has stopped 

pu rsuing the recovery o r as directed by the orde r of the Judici al Authority. 

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equ ivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together wi th o ther sho rt ­

term, high ly liquid investments (orig inal maturity less than three months) that arc readily conve rtible 

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in va lue. 

3.13 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Eq ui ty 

Proposed di vidends and interim di vidends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in 

eq ui ty in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Di rectors 

respecti vely . Liability fo r the pay ments to the holders of instruments classi fied as equi ty arc 

recognized in the peri od when sll ch paymen ts are authori zed fo r payment by the Company. 

3.14 Material prior period errors 

the erro r oC'fJ.~~:Jini~~or occurred 



presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are 

restated . 

3.15 Prepaid Expenses 

A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as ex pense upon initial recognition. 

3.16 Taxation 

Tax expense recogn ized in profit or loss comprises the sum of defe rred tax and curre nt tax. It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCl o r 

di rectly in equity, in wh ich case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the yea r, us ing tax ratcs 

enacted o r subs tantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and an y adjustments to tax 

payable in respect of prev ious yea rs. 

Defe .... ed tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts o f asse ts and 

liabi liti es in the financial s tatements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 

income. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with inveshnents in subsidiaries and joint 

venl"ures is not p rov ided if reve rsal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Company 

and it is probable that reversal will not occu r in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets and li abilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are ex pected to 

ap ply to thei r respective period of realiza tion, provided th ose rates are enacted or substantively enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. Deferred ta x assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legall y 

enfo rceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes lev ied by the 

same tax autho rity. 

Defe rred tax liabil ity is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred ta x asse t is 

recogni zed for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

p rofit s will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utili zed . D efe rred tax 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer p robable 

that the related tax benefit will be reali zed . 

Changes in deferred ta x assets o r li abiliti es are recognized as a component of tax income o r ex pense in 

pro fit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or 

d irectly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recogni zed in othe r comprehcm; ive 

income o r equity, respecti vely. 

3.17 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid 

annllal leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the e nd of the 

period in which the employees render the related se rvice, profit sharing and bonuses payable within 

twelve months after the end of the peri od in w hich the employees render the related se rvices and non-



Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution 

plans as under: 

Defil1ed CO l1 triblltiol1 plall 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions in respect of 

the employees into a sepa rate fund . The Company has no legal or constructive obliga ti ons to pay 

fu rthe r contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions m ade by the 

Compa ny towards defined contribll tion plans are charged to the p rofit or loss in the period In w hich the 

con tributions relate. 

Defilled belle fit plan 

The Company has an obliga tion towards gratuity, Post Retirement Medical Faci lity (PRMF), Prov ident 

Fu nd (PF) and Other Defined Retirement Benefit (OORB) which are being considered as de fined benefi t 

p lans covering eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an e tnployee will 

rece ive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final salary, and o ther 

defi ned pa rameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, even if plan asse ts 

fo r funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The Company's obligation towards defi ned benefit plans is determined using the projecte d unit credit 

method, w ith actuarial va luations being ca rried out at the end o f each annual reporting period . The 

liabi lity recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present va lue of 

the Defined Benefit Obligation (OBO) at the repo rting dale less the fair value of pL:m a::>sct::>. 

Management estimates the OBO annu ally wi th the assistance of independent actuaries . 

Actu a rial gains/losses resulti ng from re-measurements of the liabili ty/asset are included in Other 

Com prehensive lncome. 

Other long-teon employee benefits: 

Liab ili ty in respect of compensated absences becoming due or ex pected to be availed more th an onc­

yea r after the balance sheet date is estimated o n the bas is of actuarial valuation perfo rmed by an 

independent actuary using the p rojected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses aris ing from past ex perience and changes in actuarial ass umptions a rc 

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such ga ins or losses are determined. 

Loan to employees at concessional rate 

Loans give n to employees at concessional rate are initia ll y recogni zed at fair value and subseque ntly 

measured a t amortised cost. The d ifference between the initi al fai r value of such loans and transacti on 

value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line bas is ove r the 

expected remaining pe ri od of the Loan. In case of change in ex pected remaining period of the Loan, the 

unamortised de ferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected 

remaining period of the loan on a pros pecti ve basis. 

3.18 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 



Provis ions are measured at the estimated expenditu re trequ ired to settle the present obligation, bascd 

on the most reliab le evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and "uncerta inties 

associated with the present obligation. Provisions are d iscounted to their p resent values, w h ere the time 

va lue of money is materia l. 

A contingent liability is disclosed for: 

Poss ible obligations which w ill be confirmed only by futu re events no t wholly within the con trol of 

the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not proba ble that an outflow of resourL"CS 

wi ll be required to settle the ob ligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligat ion Gl rmot 

be made. 

In th ose cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of p resent ob ligations i s cons idered 

improbable or remote, no liabili ty is recogn ized or di sclosu re is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party conce rning 

the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separa te asset. However, this a s set may not 

exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets a re not recogni zed. However, when the in now of economic benefi ts is p robable, the 

related asset is disclosed . 

3.19 Fair value measurement 

The Company measu res financial instruments, such as deri vati ves at fai r value at each reporting dale. 

Fa ir va lue is the price that wou ld be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabi lity in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fai r va lue measurem e nt is based 

on the p resumpl'ion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabi lity takes place e ithe r: 

• In the principal market fo r the asse t or li abili ty, or 

• In the absence of a princi pa l market, in the mos t advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal o r the most ad van tageous market mus t be access ible by the Company. 

The fair va lue of an asset or a liability is measured us ing the assumptions that ma rket participan ts 

would use when p ricing the asset or liability, including assum ptions about risk, assuming that marke t 

participants act in their economic best interes t. A fa ir va lue measurement o f a non-financial asset takes 

into account a ma rket participant's abil ity to generate economic benefi ts by using the asset in its highes t 

and best use or by sell ing it to another ma rket participant that would use the asset in its hig hest and 

best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the ci rcumstances and for which 

sufficient data are avail able to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimizing the use of unobse rvable inpu ts. 

All assets and liabilities for which fa ir value is measu red o r disclosed in the financial statements arc 

catego ri zed within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input th at is 

• ((~iY'''''O]iilS11<il\.market prices i 



• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the (il ir vill ue 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair va lue 

measurement is unobserva ble 

For assets and li abilities that are recognized in the financial sta tements regu larly, the Company 

determines whether tra nsfers ha ve occurred between levels in the hierarchy by I'c-<1!;ses.sing 

ca tegoriza tion (based on the lowes t level input that is material to the fair va lue measu remen! as il 

whole) at the end of each reporting peri od. 

3.20 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Fi nancial assets and fin ancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance shee t i( 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and the re is an intention to 

se ttle on a net basis, to rea li se the assets and settle the liabilities simu ltaneously. 

3.21 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is (l business 

combination in which aU of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled b y the same 

party or parties both before and after the business combination and that con trol is not trans i tory. 

Business combinations in volvi ng entities or businesses under common control are accounted for u!;ing 

the pooling of interest method as follows: 

• The assets and liabilities of the combining en tities are reflected at their ca rrying amOll nts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair va lues, or recognize new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are made only to harmonise material accounting policies. 

• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prio r periods is rest(ltcd as if 

the business combination has occurred from the beginn ing of the preceding pe riod in th e 

financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination 

The ba lance of the retained earnings appeari ng in the financial statements of the transfero r is 

aggregated with the co rresponding balance appearing in the financial s tatements of the transfe ree. The 

iden tity of the reserves is prese rved and the reserves of the transferor become the rese rves of the 

transferee 

The d ifference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any add itional 

conside ration in the form of cash or othe r assets and the amount of share capital of th e transferor is 

transferred to capi tal reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves. 

3.22 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expenditure on issue o f shares, if an y, is charged to the securities premium accoun t 

4. Implementation of New! Modified Standards 

During the yea r, the Ministry of Corpora te Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind-AS. 



5. Material management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, 

es timates, and assumptions that affect the repo rted amounts of revenues, expenses, nssets and 

li abilities, and the related disclosu res. The estimates and underlying assumptions art..' based on 

his torica l experience & other relevant factors and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actua l results rnny 

differ from these estimates. 

Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if an y, are recognised in the period in which the 

estimate is rev ised if the rev ision affects only that period or in the period of the revis ion & futu re 

periods if it affects both current & future periods. 

Malerial managemellt judgments 

RecognHion of deferred tax assets/liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recogni zed 

is based on an assessment of the p robability of the future taxable income against which the d eferred tax 

assets can be utilized . Further, the Compan y Management has no inten tion to make withd ra wa l from 

thc Special Reserve crea ted and maintained unde r secti on 36(l)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and 

thus, the special rese rve created and maintained is no l capable o f being reversed . Hence, the company 

does not create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of ind icn lors o f 

impairment of assets requires assessment of severa l ex ternal and internal factors w hich could result in 

deteri o ration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - As a matte r of prudence, Income Oil 

credit impaired loan assets is recogn ised as and when received or on accrual basis wh e n ex pected 

real isat ion is higher than the loan amount outstand ing. 

Mlltcrial estimates 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its es timate of the usefulli vc1i of 

depreciab le/amorti zable assets at each reporting date, based on the ex pected utility of the nsscl s. 

Uncc rtninties in these estimates rela te to techn ical and ecanom.ic obso lescence that may chnllge the 

uti lit y of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBD is based on a number of 

underly ing assumptions such as s tandard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipn lion of 

future salary increases . Variation in these assumptions may materi a lly impact Ihe DBO amount and the 

anllllni defined benefit ex penses. 

Fa ir value measurements - Managemen t applies valuation techniques to determine the fa ir vnluc of 

financia l instruments (where acti ve market quotes are not available). Thi s involves developing 

est imates and assumptions consistent with how market pa rticipants would price the ins trument. In 

estimati ng the fair value of an asset o r a li ability, the Company uses market-observable data to the 

extent it is available. In case of non-avai lability of market-observab le data, Leve l 2 & Level 3 hierarchy 
is used for fair valuation. 

Income Taxes - Mate rial estimates are involved in determining the prov ision fo r incomc taxes, 

tax positions and also in res pect o f 



Expected Credit Loss ('ECl') - The measu rement of an ex pected cred it loss allowance for financial 

assets measured at amorti zed cost requi res the use of complex models and sign ificant ~ssumpt ions 

abou t fu tu re economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of custome rs defaulting and 

res u lting losses). The Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing 

ex pected credit loss to estimate ECL: 

• Determining criteria for a significant increase in cred it risk; 

• Estab li sh ing the number and relati ve weightings of forward -looki ng scenarios for e ach Iype of 

product/ market and the associated ECL; and 

• Es tabli shing g roups of simi lar financial assets to measu re ECL. 

• Estimating the probability of defau lt and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in 

case of defa ult) 



6 Cas h and Cash Equivalents 

. " , ~ 

Pn licu lars As al 30-09-2024 As aI31 -03-2024 

- Cuh on H;l.nd (including impresl) 0.08 IUl2 

- Balances with Banks 

- ill L1.lr renl accounts 728.% 4( •. 24 
- deposits with original malurity of 3 months or less 3,71352 -

Totd 4,442.56 46.26 

7 Bank Balances (other th;l.n Cash and Cash Equivalents) 
, 

Particu lars As at 30-09-2024 As at 3'1·03-2024 

• Earmarked Balances with Banks 

. For unpaid dividends 148.76 1, 1 ~2.72 

- Fur Government funds for onwiud disbursement as grant 8.63 1.1.(,4 

. Earmarked Term Deposits 

• Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 0.69 IU.7 

· Ihlances with banks nol avai lable fo r use pending 559.50 1,2 'I!HI 
allot<nent of 54EC Capi tal Ga in Tax Exemption Bonds 

• Deposits with original maturity greater than 3 months 10.22 -
Total 727.80 2,452.44 



8 Dcriv~t i ve Financia l lnstlllmenlS 

Ii) 

(ii ) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii ) 

(iii ) 

The Company enters inlO derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Th:rivatives held for risk managemmt I'"rp""" indud,' 

hedges tha t are either designated as effcct ive hedges under the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges.. 'Il", t"ble hel!>1\' ,1",1\', 

the fair values of derivative linanc:ial instruments r!.'Corded as assets or liabilities together with their notiona l amounts. 

Part I 
( ~ in Crorc",) 

I'art iculars As al 30-09-2024 As al 3] ·03-2024 

Notional fair Value- fa ir Value - Notional fair V~luc - F,l iT Value -

Amounls Assets l iab ilit ies Amounts Assds I.i.l hili l ics 

Currency Derivat ives 

- Currl'1ICY swaps 3, 142,08 409.65 251.16 3.126.52 H.3~ 311.13 

-Others 

- ScJgull Options 1,45,3J7.90 16,913.96 1,907.33 1,21,107.24 1 1. ,(J70.97 41 J.~2 

Sub-tota l (i) 1,48,479.98 17,323.61 2,158.49 I ,H,233.76 1: 1,'114.3 1 U9.95 

Interest Itale Derivatives 

_ Forward Rate Agrl'l'ments and Interest Rate Swaps 94,910.08 521.78 786.82 72.128,\3 l ,3li7.71 3l~),75 

Sub·total (ii) 94,910.08 521,78 786.82 72,128.13 "1 ,367.71 309,75 

Other de ri va tives 

- Keverse cross currency Sl\'aps - - -
Tolal - Derivalive Financial lnstrumenls {i-tii-tiiH 2,4),390.06 17,845.)9 2,'N5.31 1,96,361.89 12,482.02 759,70 

r Jrt II 
In<-"ludl'd in Part I are derivative, held for hedging and risk management purposes as below: 

( ~in e rnr,·,) 

I'" rticu lars As~! 30-09·2024 As at 31-03-2024 

No t ion~l Fa;r Value - Fair Value - Notional Fair V alue - I ;~ir V~lu .. -

Amounts Assets liab ilities Amounts Asse ts Ij~bj l ities 

!'.liT Va lue He dging 

. Interest Ra te Deri vatives 

- ForwMd Rate Agreements and [nterest Kate Swap5 13,995.70 61.09 133.78 15,950.70 - 2')7.7.1 

Sub·total (i) 13,995.70 61.09 133,78 15,950.70 - 2'17.73 

CJsh Flow Hedging 

. Currency Derivat ives 

. ('" rr .. ncy Sw~ps 3,142.08 409.65 251.16 3,126.52 43 .34 111. 13 

-( }lh!)" 

. s..agull Options 1,45,337,90 16,913.96 1,90733 1,21,107.24 11,070,% 411.112 

- Interest Rate Deri va lives 

- "'"",ard Rate Agreements and interest Rate Swaps 74,214,)8 112.18 65JM 49.477,4) 905.30 12.U2 

Sub-Iolal (ii) 2,22,6906 17,435.79 2,811.53 1,73,711 .19 12,019.60 46 1.97 

Und~",ignated Derivatives 6,700.00 348.51 - 6,70000 41i2.42 -
Tolal . Deriva tive Financial Insllllmen ts (i+ii+iii) 2,43,390.06 J7,tN5.39 2,945.31 1,96,361.89 12,482.02 759.70 



9 Receivables 

TIll' Company has categorised all rCi:eivables at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of [od AS 109, 

(i) 

II 

(i) 

P.uticulars 

Trade Receivables 

Crl'dit impaired receivables 

Less: Allowance (or ExpCi:ted Credit Loss 

Other Receivables 

UnsccuH'.:t Considered good 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

As aI 30"()9-2024 

26.94 

(26.94) 

. 
Sub-Total-J . 

3.68 
. 

3.68 

Sub-Total-II 3.68 

Tolal Receivables 0 +11) 3.68 

, . <>".~ 

As at 3 1-03-2024 

· 
· 
. 
. 

· 
· 
· 

· 

· 



10 Loans 
Thl~ Com pany has categorised lill I()an~ lit Amortised Cost in accordance with thl' rl'quirl'ml'nts of lnd AS 109. 

) (A 

(i) 

(ii) 

(8) 

Ii) 

Iii) 

liii ) 

(C)( I 

(il 

Iii) 

) 

(Clil II 

Part icu lilr5 

Loans 

Term Loans 
Working Capital Term Loons 

Total (A) - Gron Loans 

LI'S.~; Impairmenl loss allowan<:e 

Total (A) - Net loans 

Security D etails 

Secured by tangible assets 

Cuvl'roo by Cm'emment Guarantees 

UnSt.,("lIred 

Total (8) · Gro5S Loans 

I.I'SS; Impairment los~ allowance 

Tolal ( 8 ) - Net Loans 

Loans in Ind ia 

P"blic 5«;tor 

I' riv;,te 5c<;tor 

Tolal (clm - Gross Loans 

I..{"<s; Impairment loss allowance 

Tolal (C)(I). Net Lo;ons 

Loans outside India 

I..",s; Impairment loss .,l1owance 

Total (C)(II). Nel Loans 

Tolal IC)m and (C)( II) 

As at 30-09-2024 

Printip;o10/5 Amort iHd Cost 

4.88.664.25 4,9].059.07 

57.452.7[ 57,7%.39 

5,46,116.96 5,48,855.46 

(12,708.00) (12.708.00) 

5,33,408.96 5,36,147.46 

2,60,080.99 2,60,805,57 

2,'W,096.78 2,4 1,8&3.02 

45,939.19 46, [66.87 

5046,116.96 5,48,855.46 

(12,70tHIO) (12,708.00) 

5,33,408.96 5,36,147.46 

4,80,8 18.20 4,83,626.21 

65,298.76 65,229.25 

5,46,116.96 5,48,855.46 

(12,708.00) (12,708.00) 

5,33,408.96 5,36,147.46 

- -
-
- -

5,33,408.96 5,36,147.46 

'" . .... rI·~ (~ . ( . 

As at 3 1-03-2024 

Printip;o l D Is Amort ised Cost 

4,62,090 .27 4.0..1.')75.01 

47,280 N\ 47 .. ')%.% 

5,09,370.95 5, 11,572.57 

(12,380 .52) (12~'lIII1.52) 

4,96,990 .43 4,99,192.05 

2,47,650 .53 204lI. 205.~H 

2,24,500.4~ 2,25,'Jh7.AA 

37,219.92 37,3911.72 

5,09,370.95 5, 11,572.57 

(12,380.52) (12,3110.52) 

4,96,990 .43 4,99;192.05 

4,54,647J~ '1,.'i6,I1'14.211 

54,723.117 54,(,711.2') 

5,09,370 .95 5, 11,572.57 

(12,380.52) (12 .. 'lIIIt52) 

4,96,990.43 4,99,1'12.05 

- -
-

- -
4,96,990.43 4,9'1, 1'12.05 



11 Investments 

g m Cro",-"" 
r .uti rui;l, rs Amortised At bir "~Iue Sub-tot~ 1 O thers Tol~1 

Cost Through O ther Through profit Of Design~ted ~t bir (AI Cosl) 

Comprehensive loss value th rough 

Income profit or loss 

11) (2) (3) (4) (5= 1+2+3+4) (6) (7= 5+6) 
As ~t 30th September, 2024 
Gcovemmenl Securities 1,622.92 · · · 1.622.92 · 1,622.92 
Debt Securitics 3,585.54 · 971.93 · 4.557.47 · 4,557.47 
Equity Instruments · "5"" 141.63 577.01 0.10 577.11 
Preference Sh<lres 28.n · · 28.72 · 28.72 "' ... ~ - · · · · · 
Tot~l- Gross (A) 5,237.18 435.38 L113.56 · 6786.12 0.10 6786.22 
Investments outside India · · · · · · · 
Investments in India 5,237.18 435.38 1,113.56 · 6,786.12 0.10 6,786.22 
Total -Gross(BI 5,237.18 435.38 1,113.56 · 6,786.12 0.10 6,786.22 
Totallnvcstmenl"; 5,237.18 435.38 1,113.56 · 6,786.12 0.10 6,786.22 
Less: impainnent loss a llowance (C) (28.72) · (28.72) · (28.72) 
Total- Net (o-A-C) 5,208.<16 435.38 1,113.56 · 6757.<10 0.10 6757.50 

As at 31st Mu ch, 2024 
Gcovemment Securities 1,624.08 · · · 1.624.08 · 1,624.08 

Dl:bt Securitics 2 • .144.09 · 1,065.03 · 3,209.12 · 3.209.12 
Equity Instrument,.; · 410.64 76.37 487.01 0.10 481.11 
Preference Shares 28.12 · · · "'72 · 28.72 
Others · · · · · · 
Tot~l - Gross (A) 3,796.89 410.64 1,141.441 · 5,348.93 0.10 5349.03 
Investments outsi e Inaia · · · · · · · 
Investments in India 3,7%.89 410.64 1,141 .40 · 5,348.93 0.10 5,349.03 

Tolal- Gross (8) 3,796.89 410.64 1,141.4() · 5,348.93 0.10 5,349.03 

Totallnvestmenls 3,796.89 410.64 1,141.40 · 5,348.93 O. Ju 5,)49.03 

Less: impainnenlloS5 a llo .... ~nce 10 (28.72) · · · 128.721 · 128.721 

Toal- Net (D-A·C) 3,768.17 410.64 1,141.40 · 5.320.21 0.10 5320.31 



12 Other fi nandallossets 

The Comp~ny has ca tegorised all the (Omponcnls under 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accordance with Ih,' r'''luin'lIll'lll.; ,,( 

Ind AS 109. 

IAI 
(II) 

fe) 

(I)) 

IE) 

if) 
IG) 

(II) 

I'arlicul . r~ 

l.oan~ 10 Employees 

Advances to Employees 

Recoverab le from Holding Company 

Recoverable from Subsidiary Company 

Security Deposits 

Advance paid towards varia tion margin 

Recoverable from Government of India 

. Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 

Other amount, re(oveuble 

L('Ss: Impairment Loss allowance 

Other Amounts Recoverable (Nell 

13 Cunent tax assets (nell 

Particulars 

Advance [n(Ome-tax &: TDS 

I'"",;sion for In(Ome T ilx 

T,IX Deposited on in(ome lax demands under contest 

i'rovis ion for income lax for demand under conteSI 

Cuno~n l lax assets (Ne t) 

14 Deferred In: asse ts (nell 

rarticulars 

Oef('rred Tax Au('is INet) 

T ota l (A 10 H ) 

Sub-Total 

Sub-Total 

(~inCr r) " . .,. 
As .I I 30-09-2024 A s a l 31-03·2024 

67.63 57.')') 

1.55 n.II'} 

1.85 Il.S I 

5.26 (,. 'H. 

I.n 1.'14 

117.1S . 

24,317.88 24,J I" ..t 11 

86.04 1t14.fl.~ 

(49.34) (f,7.3U) 

36.10 37.3J 
24,549.S2 24,424.52 

l in Cr"r,·~ 

As .II 30-09-2024 As .II 31.{13· 2024 

211.96 211'J.·17 
. . 

2lt.96 2f\'J.47 

5.20 5.21! 

(0.25) (IL2S) 

4.95 4.'J5 

216.91 294.01 2 

(f ill Cr r ) " ,.~ 

As at 30-09-2024 As al 3 1-03-2024 

2,952.25 2,4R5Ah 
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16 Other non-fin~nci~l assets 

(AI 

(BI 

(0 
,DI 
,EI 
,FI 
,GI 

Parlicul~ rs 

Unsecured, considered good 

Ca ri ta l Advances 

Olh<'r Advances 

Bal.lnces with Governmenl Authorities 

Pre-Spent Corporate Sodal Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 

]·.e ' .... id Expenses 

Ddt'rrcd Employee iH-nefits 

Olh<'r Assets 

Tot~ 1 (A to G) 

17 Assets Classified a$ Held for Sale 

P.arlicu1u!l 

A~'i<'t~ Classified as Held for Sale-Building 

Total 

As at 30-09-2024 

As"t 30-09-2024 

r~ ill Crn ro 's 
A~ ~I 3 1-03-2024 

· H,17 

9.51 7.'J7 
24.08 J7.47 

· 5.15 
27.56 2 1.% 
19.96 l!iHI 

· lUll 

81.11 1111.54 

{~ in (".m"s 
As 01131-03-2024 

om U.U5 
0_01 0.05 



18 Payab le 

(~inCr r .) o LOS 

Particulars As at 30-09-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

(A) T rade Payables 

Tutal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.11 -
Total oulstOlnding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5.54 -

Sub- tottl l 5.65 -

(8) Other payables 

Tota l outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.84 -
Tot" I outstanding dues other th"n micro enterprises and small enterprises 5.21 -

Sub-total 7.05 -
Tota l (A+B) 12.70 -



19 Debt Securities 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(.) 

(i) 

(ii) 
(iii) 

(e ) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

The Company has calegoriSt.'d all debt securities al amortised cos t in accord ance with the requirements of Ind AS 109_ 

Particu la rs As at 30.09.2024 A sat3 t .03.20N 

hc~ V .. lu~ Amortised Cost hceVa] ue Amortised c.:os! 

Secu red l ong-Tenn Debt Securities 

Institu tional Bonds - - 1,9 5 S.fkl 2,flS2.46 

54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 43, 193.78 43,702.3 1 41.1 1( 1.~) '12,5.1.'i.71 

Tax Frf'C Bonds B,998.71 9,423.70 8,99K.7 1 9,J2f'.5n 
80nd Application Money pend ing 3lJotment 559.SO 560.95 1,245.41 1,24457 

Sub-tolal (AI 52,751.99 53,686.96 53,30 9.92 55,159.24 

Unsecured long-Term Debt Securi ties 

Institut io nal Bonds [,95,535.29 2,02,326.03 1,72,275.29 1 ,7K , II,)3.~.m 

Infrastructure Bonds 3.96 9.74 3.')6 9 .. 12 
Forei~n C urrency Bonds 32,099.81 32,00 156 32,963.75 32,1147.46 
Sub-Iota l (B) 2,27,639.06 2,34,337.33 2,05,243.00 2,'10,950.68 

Unsecured Shari-Term Debt Securities 
Cnmmerdal Paper - - -
Sub-to ta l (C) - - - -

Total - Debt Securi ties (A+B+C) 2,80,391.05 2,88,024.29 2,58,552.92 2,66,10'1,92 

Debt Secu ri ties issued in! outside India 

~bt Securities in India 2.48,291 .24 2,56,022.73 2.25,589. 17 2.3.1,2(,2;1(, 

l)Cbt 5ccurities outside India 32,099.81 32.00 1.56 32,963.75 32.K·17.'1h 

Tutal - Debt Securities 2,80,391.05 2,88,024.29 2,58,552.92 2,66, 10').92 

20 Borrowings (Other th. n Debt Securities) 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(.) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

{iiI 

'11\1' Cumpany has categorised all borrowings (other th3n d ebt securit ies) a t Amortised Cost in accordance with the r e quin' rn,'nh "f Ind A~ 

109. 

Particulars As at 30.09.2024 As a t 31.03.2024 

l'rincipaIO/s Amort ised Cosl PrincipalO/s A",orti~cd Cn ~l 

Unsecu red Long-Tenn Borrowings 
T('rm Lo..1ns from Banks 49,147.56 49,329.25 SO,612.21l 5U,02UA'} 
T~'rrn LtJans from Finandal lnsti lutions 8,050.00 8,072.28 8.oS0 .0n 1l,1172.2'J 
Term Loan in Fo reign Currency 81,876.29 81,406.82 67,205 .64 M ,m_lIt 

T~'rrn w ans from Government o f India (NSSF) 10,000.00 10.326.24 10.000 .00 ]1),325. 12 
Sub-total (A) 1,49,073.85 1,49,134.59 1,35,867.92 1,35,790.211 

Unsecured Shorl-Tenn Borrowings 

FCN R (U) Loans 34,816.07 34,82 1.89 25,138.67 25, IS1.29 
Sho rt Term Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 4,3 10.00 4,312.53 10,875 .94 IU,iHll.U·l 

Overdr~fts/ Cash Credil repayable on demand from Banks - - 267.44 267.'14 

Sub-total (B) 39,126.07 39,134.42 36,282.05 36,301.n 

Tot~ l · Borrowings (other th.n Debt Securiliu) (A to B) 1,88,199.92 1,88,269.01 1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 

Borrowings (olher than Debt Securi ties) in! outside Ind i ~ 

Borrnwings in Ind ia 1,06,323.63 1,06,862.19 1,04,944.3J l.n5.3 19.67 
BorrOWings o u ts ide India 81 ,876.29 81,406.82 67,205.64 M.m.3M 

Tot. l - Borrowings (o ther tholn Debt Securit ies) 1,88,199.92 1,88,269.01 1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 



21 5uoorl'inal td Lillvilitits 

TheComp.1ny has calt'gorised all subordinated liabilities at amortised cost in accordance with the mquirements of lnd AS W9. 

(i) 

(i i) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(i) 

(ii) 

PlI"l iculart 

1751h Serie! - Subordinate Tier- II Bonds-

8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029 

199th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds -

7.96% I~cdcemable at par on 15.06.2030 

222nd Series - Perpetua l Tier-I Bonds-

7.98% with call option on 30.04.2033 and on annual 

anniversary date thereafter 
2261h Series - Perpetual Tier-I Bonds -

8.03% with call option on 30.09.2033 and on annual 

anniwrsary date thereafter 

Total- Subordinated Liabilities 

Subordinated Liabilities inf oulside lnd ia 

Borruwings in India 

Borruwings outside India 

Tot .. 1 - Subordinated Liabil ities 

(~ in Cr"r,-.;) 

At at 30.09.2024 As al 31.03.2024 

Fac .. V.lue Amorlis .. d Cosl FaceVa.l u .. Amortis .. d COS! 

2, 151.20 2,220.10 2,] 51.211 2,0<) I .'I~ 

1,999.50 1,998.62 1,999.50 VHI .M 

2,000.00 2,064.89 2,001l.l1O 2.14S.ZI1 

1,090.00 1,088.95 I,090.0() 1,1 3.1.:m 

7,240.70 7,372.56 7,240.70 7,4 12.2 1 

7,240.70 7,372.56 7,24 0.70 7,.112.2 1 

- - - -
7,240.70 7,372.56 7, 2 4 0.70 7,412.21 



22 Other Financial Liab ilities 

IA 
(B 

1 

1 

ICI 
10 1 

LE) 

(F) 

I'utjculars 

Unpaid Dividends 

Unpaid Principal &: Interest on Ro nds 

- M.IIurM Bonds &: interest Ao:rued thereon 

_ Jnh~ rl'St on Bonds 

Sub-tola l (5) 

Advance received towards va riation mUS,n 

Funds R .. ee iv .. d from Government of India for Disbursement as 

Sub~idy/Gnnt (cumu lative) 

Add: Inlerest on such funds (nI'l of refund) 

I.~ss; Disbursed to Beneficiaries (cumulative) 

Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy! Grant 

I"pbll's towuds Bonds Fully serviced by Government of Ind ia 

Other Liabi lities 

Total (A to F) 

2J Currc"' tu liabil it ies (net) 

rartieulus 
I'rovision for Income Tal( 

I l'SS; Advance Income-tal( &: TDS 

Cur'l'nll .. liabilit ies (Ne t) 

rartieul .... s 

r'ovisions for 

" 
I i:rnp loyee Benefits 

C ,,,loi,y 

EMI1"d !.eave Liabilit)' 

M,,(tk,'] Leave Liability 

s.,·u\{'men t Allowance 

F .. """m;'; Reh~bili tation Scheme 

1.nnftSl-rvice Aw~rd 

Incr'ntive 

OdICT'! 

Sub- to/III rAJ 

181 OlheB 

Expt."<:' ed Credi t Loss 011 Letters of Comfort 

S"It-/o/a/ (BJ 

Tot~1 (A+8) 

25 O ther Non-fin~nci~1 U~bilili es 

r,rtitui3n1 

Jncumc R<."<:ei"ed in Ad\'aroce 

Sundry Liabililies Account (Funded Inlerest Capitalisation) 

Unbill~'(1 Liabi lity towards C~pilal Account 

Un~mor'ised Fee on Undisbursed Loans 

1M 
181 

1<1 
101 

lEI 
IA 

AoJv~nce r('Ceivcd from Governmenl towards Government Schemes 

Statutory Dues 
Total (A 10 F) 

~ i" Cror,·s 
A. at 30-09-2024 As "t1t-ol-2U24 

141:1.76 L.L~2 .72 

25.74 l2 .42 
8.76 111.52 

34.50 11.94 

6,993,47 4,t.)Ii.IIU 

96,280.91 %,2112.52 

3.58 3.5(, 

(96,273.68) (%.2"~.7 1 \ 

10.81 1(' ,37 

24,317.1!8 24.JII2.4(l 

2.590.18 1,577AJ 

34,095.60 J I,H40.66 

(~ in er" ... · .. 
As al 30-09-2024 As a t 1 t -03·211H 

5,267.34 3,2"-l.1I5 
(4.971 . 12) (3.2 17':"1) 

296.22 /\6$ 1 

It i" C ..... ,·, 
As al .lO-09-20H As at 1 1-o3-10H 

, .. 11.1 .1 

34.43 JH.~ 

22,02 21.52 

2.'13 2.-111 

5.51 4m 

4 .7~ 4 ,~ t 

26.31 30.55 

0.8<1 1.117 

99.10 1 0~ .55 

24.03 32'(12 

24.03 32.(12 

121.13 t36.57 

(I in Cr"r,·") 
As a131l-09-20N As at 31-03-2024 

0.14 -
47.06 47.1111 

48.38 ~1I_1II 

22 1.71:1 115.311 

0.08 -
45,23 5/W (, 

362.67 239.62 



r.rtic .. l.OS 

Au,,,,,.i ... d : 
Eq.,il)' . .... <>$ 01 ~ 10 tath 

I ..... d. Subscribed and raid up: 
1\,")' I, .• i.l up [quilj' th ..... o( I 10co<h 

Toto.] 

21 In.trumcnt. enli,ely cqully in n.tun 

r .,licu l ... 

1'''")' r.i.l "I' P"pelu~1 DeOI~ I nsl'u~IIt "",tiocly "'luily in II.tureol ' 10 I.k", co<h 

Tol,l 

l.!I O th •• Equi ty 

r~rtirul~OS 

CAl 01h .. RHt""" 
Ii) $1"' ....... 1 Knt-"'C<r<"IM ""l6(1)("iii) oll~ 1""om<T.~ Ad. 1961 
Iii! w.,."..., .. f", II.od _ doubolui dtbtillh)6fI)(w..)ollhr _T", A<1. 11161 

(i ii) ~.Iulory R"",,~ uls 45-1C of Rcsc.ve e..nk ofltld •• Act. 1934 

(i y) !;a" .. I_ rn:nli .. m 

(y) rornlln C""","'1' MontI •• y htmT"nsl.tion Diff""""" Acroont 

(y; ) c:.~ .... t R .... ·"·. 
IH) Rd.incd fun; 1I8" 

lei OlhcrComprehenliYo Income lOCI) 
. 1"1"'W 1n.<",,"""IIS Ih,ou8hOther Co.nl"c ....... ivc Income 

. Efhtivt· ('".tim, ole.,h Flow IIe<lges 

. C<>j.I "f 1r.~r8i"g ,,'so.vo 
Toul· Ol~ " Equity 

AI.13O.0'l.1014 

No. oI Sh~"" Am .... nl 

5000000000 "..,., 

2AWl.2~,ooo 1.6)3.22 

UJ..ll.lUOO 1.633.11 

A •• tJ.(l.QU014 

Numb •• Amou nl 

SS8~ 

S.5U 

A. al 3O.0'l.16U 

"'~ 

"' .. 

29.81UI 
1.105_26 

IUI8.51 

1..'i??S3 

(60S.61) 

12,2;8"'4 
14.599.7'l 

(J.l.84) 

(890.33) 

(0160.81) , 
69.101.41, 

II "'c" ..... q 
,\~ ~'ll.G.U024 

No.oC Sh.. ..... Amounl 

l.OO.' .~"~I'~' 'i.CUl.Il' 

2.63 •• :11.~ •. 00(I UlI12 

l.~..ll.l~.OOO 1.Ul.ll 

(Iille,,,,,·.,) 

A , ,I J I.OJ.ln14 

Nu",bc. Amoun l 

..... """ ~'iIt .HI 

"" 5.S8.~ O 

I ' ;IIn" ..... ) 
A~ .t 11.G1.10U 

2MltKl 

""''' UI.~2H"" 

1.577"1 
{It"'; 1.1) 

II ."'~ I I 

n.-"'l.JoC1 

("'"'1 
rl .~ I~"') 

I.WOO~! 

bS.~~I .S.' 



19 InlereSl l,,~om~ 

'" (iI 

lei 
(i) 

'0' 
m 
W) 
(iii) 

P .. licutus 

Inl .. ",lon LNn A .. ~ .. 

Ulnlllcrm f;""ncing 

Sho<llc.m fi,,~ncing 

Sub- lot,1 (A) 

I nl~rhll ncom~ from InveJ lmenls 

IIlI",~st from Long Term I",·eslmcnl. 

Sub-Ioiol (6 ) 

lnl~~t on D~posi" with Bonkl 

hue ... " from ~pos;ts 

Sub-toto l (C) 

Oth.,. 1 .lu~sl ln<ome 

Inlr .... 1 on o..l~)'ed P.ymftus by IIorro ... ·r" 

(n!!-""'I f.om Slaff A(h'~nte5 

IIIt~"'SI on Mobili<alwn AdvAnce 

Sub- lo l, 1 ( 0) 

Tol. t · Inlereol I n<om~ (A 10 0) 

1'~.t icul~r:< 

1)"',,1('1,,1 fron, SulKidiaryCon'I"'ny 

I) ... 'd~ ... t from Other Inve:stmft\!s 

Tol.l· Dividend Income 

)1 f~" .nd Commiu;on I n.om~ 

1' • • licu l, ,, 

1',~ ... l>_,,,,~1 r.'C"nl~ 
l'r~IMI' '''''''t ('""mium 
F~",' OII ... r Incom" for Impl"n",ntal"", of Go"~n"''''''1 

Seh ..... ",,, 
Totol· Feel ond Commission Income 

32 Olk. Income 

1'~,Ii,ul." 

Net g~;"' IIo.ss) Oil Jispos;ol of ~_SdU5'f'O'd • • h~1d for $d Ie 
Rem_.! In,n"", 

U.l><I'"";JJ'rov's'o,, W.;I1~" B .. ck 

F~c' fm'" Training Cour.ses 

M;..,dl,"'<~lu . lncome 

TOlol - O lhu In<ome 

I'~riod ended 30·09·2024 

On f inonri.l On fin.nd.t On Fin .. ri.t 

A .. ~" ..... nrfll A.HI."' ... ......! A .. ~ls musu,..I.1 
~, F.i, V.t~. >lA",.tri .. <lCoo' F .. i, V .. lu~ 'h"'wl~ 
IhrGup OCt Profi' or l .... 

13,602_26 -
- 2,085.00 -
- 25,687,26 -

- 185.64 40,18 

- 185.64 40.78 

131.6'1 -. 131.69 -

- 110.63 -
- ,." -

0." 
tl 3.34 -

26,123.93 40.78 

I'e.iod ~ndtd 3Q..09·10H 

SO." 

'" ,,-" 

P.riod ended 30-09-2024 

16.45 

18.72 

-
95.17 

Period ended 3O-09-202~ 

, .ro 
8.40 

'" 3.M 
17.62 

38.27 

(I ill Cr"""t 
Puiod ~nded 3(HJ9.202.1 

O~ ri~ .nri.t On Filt .... ,;.l Oft ...... ,;.1 
A.HI. ",~ .. Y .. <I Ao ... l.m"" .. " .. d .............. ~ .. d.1 

., hi.V .. lwe a/ Amorti • .,d C ... , F .. h \'.I .... I~'"~~~ 
1~.O~BhOCt r.ol" ... I. __ 

20,2711.114 

- 1,3'1'l42 

- 21,6 78.26 

I!lAO 2'1 t,·1 

- 111.40 2'1M 

- 21 6.011 -
2 16.08 . 

. 7~ S,' 

- H6 -
- 0.12 

71. 11 -
22,0 52,85 2~.U 

(I «( ( "'''-'I 
P~riod e nded 31H1<J.2011 

2.1411 

n."1 
2UI 

, 
'" no,, -, 

P~riod ~ nded 30·09-201) 

2'/ 7" 
1-/ <; '1 

21, I .. 

"''' 
",l"","1 

Period ~ nded 30-09-201) , 
" ')1' 

,1 <;<; 

~ ,!W, 

19.211 



11 f ino nco Coo ts 

FI " ."c~ COSt5 have been incu rll'd on financiailldbilil ies mea.u r ... 1 at ~mortised cost, 

r"licul.rs 

(i) 1" le,eo' o n 8 0 .... owln8" 

-lu,t U" Imm Go"emmenl 01 Indl. (NSSF) 

.1..,., ,,. fmm BanW Fm..nci.a1 Institutions 

· 1:" .... n. 1 Commem. 1 EIorrowln8" 
Sub.To",l(i ) 

Iii) Int. ' ej;I On D.bl Sec:uriti ,.. 

. 1)<)nl('<;I,c Dtbt Securities 

· Furcigll CurrellCY Debt Secu rities 

· C""m"" dal Paper 

Sub.T"I~1 (il) 

nli) I ",e, •• t " " Sub<>rdin.ted liabil iti ... 

· SUOO"llI1iltC Bond. 

Sub·Tot.al ( iii) 

(i¥) Other Inter ... t bpen ... 

• !m'dP Pre'ml"m 

• I nlc~t "" V~ ri.t ion Margin 

- I"t~'""'" o n Ii/l bili, y tow .. d . ""'pIO)_ bffwoflt. 

Sub·Tot.1 (i¥) 

Total . f i",nce e ... ", 
Leu: FIMI1('f' C0SI5 Cdpllatised 

Total · fln. nce C ... ", (N et) 

3~ Ne ' !,. n, la t ion! tun.u tion uch.ng. 1" .. 1 (g.ln) 

f' .. !ieu l • •• 

,".~ IM,,""'t;.,ni I,an ... ction « ch."g"loM/ (g. III) 

Tot.a l 

JS F . .. . nd co mmi •• ;on expe"s. 

(i ) 

(m 
(iii) 

(I¥ ) 

I.' 

1M 

I' • • ticul • •• 

( :"Mdll"'I.' F .... 

I I,tllll\ ,lIId Trusteeshi p F,"" 

A~c"~)" FI."'s 

l:rodl t Ib !ln g Expcn .... 

«"It"'" Fi"",>Ce Ch~rgn 

Tot.al ( I lo ~) 

r .ttie .. I . ... 

Ntl g~ lnl (lo •• 1 on fin a ncial ;ru.trum.nU at F.I, V.lue 

Ih,ough pro fit or I ... , 

O n tud in", POrlfolio 

O th .... 

- Ch""II"" in fa l. value of De rivdlives 

· 0.''''11''$ in f.i , valu e of Long Tern. In,'.~!;t ">e"IS 

-a" '"R''S In fait va lue of ShorHe ml Mf In''C!$tnM:11 ls 
Sub-lot.1 (il) 

Tot.I (A) 

Pe, iod end ed 31H19-20H 

Pe. lod ended lO·~10U 

r~ riod endd JO·09· 20H 

Pe. iod e nd .. d 30·09·2024 

( t ' (" ,,' "''' ''1 
Pe,iod ended 1O.U9. 20 23 

~ 1 2.38 U 1<.O 
2,4.';U 5 2.717,11.1 

3,110.&1 2, " ~ 11 
5.981.66 ~.H~.~7 

8.674.93 7.2"",2" 
658,1)9 K1S.h" 

. 4.1 ' I~ 

9.333.02 II.I.J~ . ·IO 

343.\12 :11)1 <;" 

3 43.92 301S~ 

"'-" 7U1 4)1 

211 .92 I t ll' 

,." n,tI/, 
S6U~ 717.17 

16.s18.U !~, ~ OO.CJ~ 

(1.\ 3) (U1U) 

16,527.71 U , l~q ,M 

It ill l'"",.,) 
Pe,iod .... d .. d 3CJ.09·202J 

101.71 Ill! C,l 

101 .71 110$ .1 

g,,,( 'n,,·,) 
Period . nde d 30·09·2023 

0.14 n. ~~ 

0.02 U(fl 

' 5' 1I. 7~ 

2.18 ,% 
'" ". 
9.14 ' .n 

'" " 'r .... 
P .. riod ended JO-O'J' 20l) 

. 

(14.91) ]' 7,f~) 

2%.10 .11 711 

I." , ~ 

283.11 J.~U8 

283.11 3SU I 



J7 I mr~irm~n l on fin~nd~1 i", lntmenll 

P'fli.cub ... P~.iod ~ndrd JG.I)9-10Z( 

On finu.d.1 i .. olnt"",nl'! 

mealu," at FVOCI 
(i) 

liil 

- !.DoIUS ' 

-011"" .• 
Tol.lli-iiI 

18 En,p loy~" Benefits hpen ... 

P.,lic"I"J 
• s,,1 ,ori,·. ~nd I\U<.>w.n=' 

- C"" I,ih"lio" 10 Provident ~"d Olhe, Funds 

-
-

- Ren' I"wa,ds Residenti.1 I\«omod~t;on fo, Employ""" 
· S!~f/ \\'''',.,,, E~p",,~ 

Tot. 1 

39 o..l'.«i. lio" and ."'o' liu tio .. 

r • • I' (u l." 

- Ikl'" ... ;' tion on Proptrty. Planl t. Equip ........ 1 

· Am"rti~~ l i.on on ("'.ngibJ" A.....u 
Tobl 

r""(ul • • , 
- Dorffl 1" penditur1' 
_ O,·~.h.,."ls 

Tot. 1 

41 O lh", hl'<'''''''' 

I, ... i< ul ... 

- Tr.,·dHnK "nd Co""">,o,,ce 

· I'nblidty &: I',o,notion ul"'n!i<" 
· I«'p., i's .",d Mainten~nc~ 

- ~""" t ,,, ~ .• ~nd ~"e'gy costs 
- I",,,, • ..,<c Ch~rg<'S 
· C"",,,,,,,,k~.lon COSIS 

· 1'.1"''''1\'' S'J'ione.y 
- Di" ... ,,,r' .• s ' lting fees 

· Au,I,I .. ,,' fees and ~'·~ses 

· 1.<."..1 k l'rofcssio".1 Ch.rges 
- IlondI NJf1S &: Ch.ri,y 

- Nell "'S "n Dispos.o l oIl"Ope.ly, PI.nt Ie f.qulp,,~" 

- Tfd",inlt And Coof~,mct' E>.~~ 

• <.:0. ........... ", SC~,,>e Moo;,o rinS E>.~~ 
- OIt ... , I'\p"ndll"", 

TOI~I 

011 'inand.l ill. lntm~nl'l 

mea.ured at Amort;~d Cosl 

319049 

'" J2U7 

Pe. iod ended 3O·09-202~ 

Per'od e"d"d J(H)9·20N 

P~riod ~nd~d JG.I)9-1014 

r e riOd "ndtd 3O·09·10U 

It c '" f .. r.", 
P",iod "nd.-d JO.09+2 0 ll 

On fin.nd.! i nslnJm~lIt. On ' i" ..... ' .1 .n'tru ....... ls 
mUlured.1 FVOCI mea .. ut~ al IImooliM"d C .... I 

- (lllh 7111 
- ,111 

OO!')7) 

I ~ . C '" '''''''1 
Peri od ended .lO.O9.20ll 

67.10 (,(171, 

17,45 11 ,11/, 
4.43 2 'It 

26.88 I ~ 111 
115.8.6 'IO .~l 

( ~.., l"'''''1 
Puiod ended 31H19·1013 

11 ,60 til'''' 
0.15 o.'~. 

11.75 11.11." 

(~ ii, C"' ...... 
Per'od ended .l(H)9·10lJ 

78.18 ·11 7'i 
<32 .1ht ,'-', u ...... 

It .., ("' '''''' 1 
P.riod cnd"d 311'09-20lJ 

14.81 7 0', 
14.114 1,1.2 

14.79 II 1, 

3.27 2 ~7 

'" "If, ,." '" 0.~5 u,~. 

'" " .21 

' .96 II . II~ 

,." ~ If, 
0.01 

J.26 I.' 
5.11 7"'4' 

10m 71'1 

11 .48 1.1.tl2 
90.18 I14Io,U 



4Z Tu Exp''''''' 

(I i" C"",") 
[' • • I ieu l ... Period ended 3/1-/l9'Z/lZ4 Pe . iod ended J/I·0IJ-ZOZ) 

· 0",,,,,1 ta~ .. ~pense 1,983.00 I ,~\ I ~2 

· Cu,..-nl I~x expt:l1sd(ben<>fil) ~n.inin8 to t~ . lit. yta •• -

Sub·IOUI. Curre nt T~~ 1,983.03 t .5J I .~l 

• [)(>f{'rfCtl tax .... pensel (credit) (65511 L'H~I 

Total 1,917.5Z 1.71\.;.OZ 

]' .. Ii culu l Pe riod ended 3/1·09·Z/lZ4 ]' enod ended JO·09·Z0Z) 

Ny mUi10r 

Pmfil fn. the yur from rontinuin8 0~'.lion5 "~' Stattm<'l1t 7,H 7.92 f..71JW 
01 rrofit ~nd Loss ( ~ in Cmrd)· 

rrolit '0' .... rea. 'rom diolrontinued ope •• 'ioo$ ., «, - -
54.' ... "n" o f Profit ..... lOSII f~. in C.oresj" 

I'rofit '0' ,,. Y"M ,~, rontinuing ... d iSCOl1 tinued 7,447.92 f>.711 !>II 

"tlt'r~tions as per St.t .. """,,1 of rrofit and 1.otI!I (f in Cm .... )· 

1H:lWmill.lw: 
Wt'i"hl c.:! .vN~ge Number of ~ui'y shartS 2.63,32,24,000 2,"' .. 12,H,IUI 

1I.,~k &.: Diluted Ea m ings per Sh .. e (in f lor an e<J"ily sh~", 01 2a28 2~ ~7 

I 10 e" eh) (for con linuing ope rAtions) 

n~>ic &: Diluled Eamings per Share (in I fo •• n equity sha re of 

I 1/1 .. "d,) (fo . discontinued oper. tions) 

1!. .. 1e &: [)illite<! Earnings P<" Sh.", (in' lew an ~lIity s hol . .. of 28.28 2~ ~7 

I 10",l(h) (fo . coolinuin!,: ~nd di...,.,tinued OP("~l ion.) 



KAllASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxml Deep BuildIng, 

l axml Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-11oo92. 

SCV & CO. llP. 

Chartered Accountants 

8·41, Panchsheel Enclave, 

New Delhl- 11ool7. 

Review Report on Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the period 1" April 2024 to 
30th September 2024 of REC limited, 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
REC limited 
Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 
7, lodi Road, 
New Delhi - 110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of REC limited 
('the Company' or 'the Parent Company') and its subsidiary (the parent company and its subsidiary together 
referred to as "the Group" ) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30th September 2024, and the 
related Statement of Consolidated Profit and loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the ha lf year 
ended 30th September 2024 and a summary of material accounting policies (together hereinafter referred as 
"Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements") as required by Ind ian Accounting Standard·34 
'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

These Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibil ity of the Parent 
Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared in all 
material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting 
Standard-34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with relevant ru les issued thereunder and othe r accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
These Specia l Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared solely for the pu rpose of 
inclusion of financial information in respect of fund-raising programmes of the Company and its Holding 
Company ("Power Finance Corporation limited"). 

Scope of review 

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in accordance with 
the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 " Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 
Independent Auditor of the Entity" 'issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard 
requ ires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Special Purpose 
Consolidated Interim Financia l Statements are free of material misstatement . A review of interim financial 
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, 
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit 
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance 
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do 
not eICpress an audit opinion. 



Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that ca uses us to believe that the 
accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated interim Financial Statements are not prepared, in all material 
respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting Standard 34 
'Interim Financial Reporting' rind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in Ind ia. 

Other Matters 

i. We did not review the interim financial statement of the subsidiary included in the Special Purpose 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements; whose interim financial reflect total assets of ~ 886.52 

crores, tot al revenue of II: 219.72 crores, total net profit after tax of III! 100.96 crores and total 

comprehensive income of II: 100.96 crores for the half year ended 30th September 2024 and cash 
inflows(net) of III! 16.39 crores for the half year ended 30'~ September 2024, as considered in the Special 

Purpose Consolidated Inter im Financial Statements. These interim financial statements have been 

reviewed by other auditor whose Report has been furnished to us by the Management a n d our 
conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 

of the subsidiary is based solely on the Report of the othe r auditor and the procedures perform ed by 
us as stated in 'Scope of Review' paragraph above. 

Our conclusion on the Specia l Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements Is not modified in 

respect of the matter as stated above. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Company for the purpose of inclusion o f financial information in 
respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding Company thereto and should not be used 
by any other person or for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume any liability or duty of ca re for any 
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where 
e)(pressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

For MIs Kallash Chand Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration : 112318W 

For MIs SCV & Co. llP. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration:00023SN/NS00089 

. "' 
Name· 5aurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 
Membership Number: 167453 
UDIN: 24167453BKBGEF7760 

Date: October 26, 2024 
Place: Delhi 

~ /,."-" Name-Abhlnav Khosla 
~/&dAL _,r '/ 

~- Designation: Partner 
Membership Number: 087010 
UDIN:240870108KBOGV2854 
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REC Limited 
Registe~d Office - Co~-4, SCOPE Co mplu, 7, l odhi Ro.d, New Delhi . 110003, CIN: UOIOI DL 1969GOJ005095 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 301h. September 2024 

~ i n C",r," 
I'ART ICULARS Period ~nded J,O·09·10U Period ended 30-0 Q.1OB 

A. Cas h Flow from Operating Activitiu , 
Ne t Profit before Tax 9,~~6.61 8.558.77 

Adj us tments for: , Loss! (Gain) on deremgnition 0/ t>roperty, Ptant and Equipment (net) 3.27 1.89 , LoS51 (Cdin) on derecognition 0/ Assets hetd lor sate (net) (6.03) (1.32) 

:1. Depreciation & Amortization 11.~9 11.97 
.,. I mpairm~n l allowance.on Assets Classified as Held for Sate (0.09) 

5 . Impai rment los .... on Financial Instruments 31852 (702.36) 

" Loss! (Cain) on Fair Value Changes (net) (281.19) (352 . .38) 

7. Effective Inlere.t Rate (ElR) in respect of Loan As ... ts and Borrowing. 154.54 (153.71) 

II. Int",e.1 on Commercial raper 43.95 

'I. Unreabse<l Foreign Exchange Translation Lossl' (Gain) (1.(1409) (306.93) 

IU. Uahililiesll'rovisions wrilten back (0.20) (0.24) 

" Inle",st on Inveslmenls & others (45.92) (11.00) 

Operating pro fi t bdore Ch.nges in Operating Assets &< l iab ilities 8,567.10 7,088.54 

In / low I lOu t/lo w) on account of : 

I. Lo." Assets (36,746.01) (39,263.07) 

2. Derivatives (465.68) (14S.06) 

;1. Other Financial and Non· Financial Assels 916.29 48.14 

,I. Other Financial and Non · Financi.1 Liabilities & Provisions UJJ.96 3.53385 

C~sh /low from Opera tions /25,394.33) (2~,337.60) 

I. Income Tax Paid (including TDS) (1,704.73) (1,375 .2S) 

Net Cash Flow from Oper~ti n g Aclivities (27.099.07) (30,712.851 

II . Cash Flow from Invuting Aclivi liel ,. Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.02 "'" ,. Sale of assels held lor s. le M' 1.61 , Investment in Property, PI.n t & Equipment (incl . CWIP & Capi lal Adl'~nce.) (29.56) (12.SO) , Investment in Intangible Assets (including intangible assets under del'elopment 
,. Ca pila l Advances) 

(0.02) 

.~ . I:inance Costs Capitalised (1.13) (0.20) 

h . SolIe! (In''e'tmen!) in Equity Shares . 3.34 

7. Uedemplio,,/ (Investment) in High Quality Liquid A .... ts (HQI.As) (net) (1,437.65) (49.98) 

It Redemption/ (In,'eSlment) in Debt Se<:urities other th an HQLAs (nel) 350.08 11.61 

'I. Sa le/(1n ,'eslment) of lin , IMres 0/ associa te/subsidiarr companies (Net) 13.56 (3.02) 

III. Intetesl Income from investments 17.\5 ".00 
II. Ma lurityl(1nvcslmcnl) oMn Corporate and Tcrm dcposits (19.58) 60.92 

Ne t Cash Flow from Investing Activi ties nI01.0S) 11.111 

(~ in Cm"',;J 

l'ART ICUl ARS Period ended 30·09-2624 Period ended 36.(19·2023 

C. Cash Flow from Financi ng Activitiu 

I. Issuel (Redemption) 01 Rupee Debt 5e<:uritics (nel) 22,702.07 5,4S5 .~ 

2. Issuel (Rede mption) of Commerci" I 1'3per (nel) 3,~.89 

.1. Raising! (Repayments) of Rupee Term Loansi' WCO!. from Banks! Fls (net) (8,030.67) 4,759.22 

., Raising! (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt 5e<:u rities and Bnrrowing' (nel) 20,447.08 24,807.54 

, ({"ising! (Redemption) ofSubordinaled Liabilities ([1('!) . 590.00 

". Payment of Di" idend on Equily Shares (2,238.24) (1,912.02) 

,. Repayment towMds Le.se Liability (0.01) 

Net Cash /low from Financing Activities 32.880.2 4 36,7SU& 

Nel Incre.selDec ..... e in Cash &: Cash Equivalent. 4,680.13 6,05.1.92 

C "h &: Cash E'IUivalent5 ~s al the beginning o f the period 14.68) (38.89) 

Cd,h &: C~sh E, uivalent& as ~I the end of the period 4,675.44 6,015.03 

Net In<ru. elD« ..... in C.,h" C .. h Equi •• I.nt. 4,680.12 6,053.92 

c.\'Iand J~. 

r) 4y " " ., <r 
.~ (l 

PI.ce:Delh i ~ Delh i-92 ? Vive k Kpm~r Oew.ng.n 

O. le: 26th October 2024 * ~ * * * ~.irm~n &< M.naging Dire~ C ~ 

~~~IJ ""'1< ' ~) 
Dl N-01377212 (j-.l & 0. ( 

0"/ "<", 
~ 

~~o/.'hi )~ g R :!! 
~ ~~ -?! :-,.'t1 • • /'fJrf ,,~ .. (\>,) 
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Pul'eu]." R~,.,'n &: Surplus 
Special R ..... ,....e R ..... rve for St..,utory S«\trities Capital Foreign 
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REC Limited 

Registered Office· Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003 

CIN, L4010lDL1969GOIOOS09S 

Noles to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 

REC Limited ("REC" or the "Company" o r the "holding company") was inco rporated i.n the year 1%9. 

The Company is domici led in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office an d p ri ncipnl 

plnce o f business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodh i Road, New Delhi -l10003, Ind ia. The books of 

accounts are maintained at the Corporate Office situated at Plo t no. 1-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Ha ryann, 

in ndditi on to the registered office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across the country, 

mninly in the State Capital s and one training centre at Hyderabad. 

The Company is a Government o f India Enterp ri se engaged in ex tending financial assistance across the 

power sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non­

Banki ng Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of Ind ia (RBI). Being an NBFe the 

compn ny is regulated by Rese rve Bank of Ind ia. 

The company has been acco rded with the statu s of a ' Maharatna' Central Public Sector Ente rprise by 

the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Minis try of Finance. 

I{[;:C is a leading Infrastructu re Finance Company in Ind ia and the principal products of REC a n~ 

intcrL's t-bearing loans to Sta te Electrici ty Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and 

Privntc sector for a ll segments of Power infrastructu re. During FY 2022-23, REC has also di vers ified into 

the Non-Power In frast ructu re sector comprising Roads & Ex pressways, Metro Rail, Airport s, IT 

Communication, Social and Comme rcial Infrastructure (Ed ucational Institution, Hospitals ), Ports and 

Electro-Mechanical (E&M) works in respect of various o ther sectors like Steel, Refinery, etc. 

The g ro up is al so engaged through its subsidiaries in engineering consultancy se rvices . Minis try of 
Power, Governmen t of Ind ia/State Government, allocates independent transmission p rojects from time 
to time to the Company to work as Bid Process Coord inator (BPC), for selection of developers .. s 
Transmission Service Provider (TSP) through Tariff Based Competi tive Bidd ing Process (TBCI3). In 
o rder to ini tia te deve lopment of each such transmission projects, RECPDCL inco rpo rates n project 
speci fic Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company and after the selection of 
successful bidde r th rough TBCB process notified fo r transmiss ion projects, the respecti ve project 
speci fi c SPY along with all its asse ts and liabilities is transferred to the successful bidder. 

RECPDCL is p rov iding consultancy and fee based service in the areas of rural electrification, AT&C loss 
red uction strategies, IT implementati on work including setting up of data Cent re, customer care center, 
etc. with GIS integ ration, Implemen tation of Smart Grid projects covering Sma rt mete ring with AMI. 
Construction of Solar PV Plants, SCADA implementation MRI/AMR based meter read ing & billing 
works, DPR prepa ration & project management Consultancy for power Distribution Projects, 
Strengthening work of Power Distribution, Energy efficiency projects and Quali ty & Qu anti ta tive 
Su rve ill ance/ Inspection o f the works executed . 

The shnres of the Company a re li sted on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited . 

Furthe r, va rious debt securities of the Company ar . ted on the Stock Exchanges. 

Cn.ndd '<,.0 LlM/1-
The Compa its subsidiaries i nafte r ed to as ' the Group' . 
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2. Basis of Preparation 

These Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose of 

inclus ion of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the g roup a nd compli l's 

with the measurement principles laid down under Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian 

Acco unting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies A ct, 2013 ilnd 

other applicab le regu latory norms I guidelines including those issued by RBI. These fin ancial 

statements for the period ended 30th September 2024 we re authorized and approved by the Boa rd of 

Directo rs on 26th October 2024. 

3. Material Accounting Policies 

The ma terial accounting policies applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are tiS 

given below: 

3.1 Basis of consolidation 

SlI llsidiary 

Subsidiary is the entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power oyer 

the in vestee, is exposed to or has rights to va riable returns from its involvement with the entity and htls 

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity . The fin ancial s tatements of 

subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which cont rol 

commences until the date on which control ceases. The Group combines the financial statements of the 

holding company and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items of assets, li abilities, equ ity, 

income and expenses. 

Eql/ity accounted investees 

The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise of the interests in associates and joinl 

venture. 

An tlssociate is an entity, including an unincorpo rated entity, over which the Company has s ignifi canl 

influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Interests in associates arc 

acco unted for using the equity method. These interests are initially recognised at cost, which includes 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial s tatements incl ude the 

Grou p's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OC!) of equity~accounted investees 

until the date on which s ig nifi can t influence ceases. However, in case where it is assessed that the 

in vestment! interest in associates is held for sale, the interest in associates is accounted for under lnd AS 

105. 

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Croup has joint control and has ri ghts to the net assets 

of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. 

Interes ts in joint ven ture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cos t 

which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the c~msolidated financial s tateme nts 

include the Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comp rehensive Income (00) of eq ui ty-



3.2 Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Int ra-g roup balances and transactions, and any unreal ised income and expenses arising from intra ­

group transactions, are el iminated. Un realised ga ins arising from transactions with equ ity <lccountcd 

inv(>stees are eliminated aga inst the investment to the extent of the Group's in terest in thc in vl's t('c. 

Unrea lised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised ga ins, but only to the exten t th<lt here is 

no ev idence o f impairment. 

3.3 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The co nsolidated financia l statements have been prepa red on going conce rn basis followin g accru <l1 

sys tem o f accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financ ial li abi lit ies 

which are measured at fair va lues as ex plained in relevant accounting policies . These policies have been 

.1 pp lied consistently for all the periods presented in the consolidated fina ncia l s tatements. 

Flllldicmal alld presentation cu rrency 

The conso lidated financia l statements are presented in Ind ian Rupee (' INR' ) which is also the fu nctional 

eLI rrency o f the G roup. 

3.4 Income recognition 

IlIler!'!>t illcome 

Unless o therwise speci fied, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropria ted in the orde r of (i) cos ts 

<lnd ex penses of REC (ii ) delayed and penal in teres t includ ing interest tax, if any (iii) over due in terest 

includ ing interest tax, if any and (i v) repayment of p rincipal; the oldest being adjusted firs t, except for 

cred it impaired loans and recalled loans, where principa l amount is appropria ted only after the 

complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal in terest and ove rdue interes t including 

interes t tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTS)/ Insolvency and Bankru ptcy Code 

(lBC) proceed ings are approp ri ated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery 

the reafter, towa rds inte rest and other charges, if any. 

For fin ancial asse ts measured at amorti zed cost, in terest income is reco rded us ing the effec ti ve interes t 

ratc (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receip ts through the ex p ected life of 

the fin ancia l asset to the net ca rrying amou nt of the financial assets. 

Interest o n financi al assets subsequently measured at fair va lue th rough profit and loss is recogn ized on 

an acc rual basis in accordance with the terms of the respecti ve contract and is disclosed sepa rately 

under the head in terest income. 

As a matte r of prudence, income on credit impai red loan assets is recognised as and when received or 

on accru al basis when expected reali sation is h ighe r than the loan amount outs tand ing. 

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by bo rrowers is recognized on receipt of ent ire interest 

amount due in ti me, in accordance wi th the terms of the respecti ve contract an d is netted aga ins t the 

cor respond ing interest income. 

II/COlli!: fro m GoveYIIlllellf schcmcs 

Income o f agency fee vernment schemes i ""'f'I'll!'~ 

amount o f fee sa 
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Dividend income 

Income from di vidend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual fund s is taken into account ( Ill 

accru a l basis when right to receive payment is established. 

Prov ided that in case of final di vidend, the right to receive payment shall be considered a s es tilb li shed 

only lIpon approval of the di vidend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

Di vi dend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair va lue through p rofit and loss i s recugnised 

scpilri'ltely under the head ' Dividend Income'. 

01111'1" services 

Fees/ cha rges on loan asse ts, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on 

acc ru<l l basis. Pre- payment premium is accounted for by the Grou p in the year of receipt. 

Revl'll lle from sale of services 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 

and the revenue can be reliably measured . 

The G roup uses the princi ples laid down by the Ind AS 115 to determine that how much and when 

revenue is recognized, what is the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues etc. In 

ilcco rdance with the same, reven ue is recognised through a five-step ap proach: 

(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer; 

(ii ) Identify separate perfo rmance obligations in the contract; 

(iii) Determine the transacti on p rice; 

(iv) A lloca te the transaction price to the perfo rmance obliga tions; and 

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obl iga tion is satisfied. 

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount s 

and other indirect taxes. 

In Cost Plus Contracts - Revenue is recognised by including e ligible contractual items o f expenditures 

plus proportionate margin as per con tract; 

In Fi xed Price Contracts - Revenue is recognised on the basis o f stage of completi on of the contract. The 

Group has assessed that the stage of completion is determined as the proportion of the total time 

ex pected to complete the performance obliga tion to that has lapsed at the end of the reporting peri od, 

which is an appropriate measu re of progress towards complete sa ti sfacti on o f these performance 

obliga ti ons under Ind AS 11 5. 

Estimates of revenues, costs o r ex tent of prog ress toward completion are revised if circumstances 

change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in p rofit or loss 

in the pe riod in which the circumstances that give ri se to the revision become known by management. 

Profess ional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/develo pers for transmission projects pu t 



Sale proceeds of Request fo r Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective Spy and sa le 

proceed s of Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the G roup and a ccounted as 

income of the Group. 

3.5 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of in teres t and othe r costs that the Group incurred in connection with the 

borrowing of fund s. Borrowing costs that are d irectly attribu table to the acqu isition and! o r construction 

of a qualifying asset, till the time such qual ify ing asset becomes ready fo r its intended usc, arc 

capi tali zed. A qua lify ing asset is one that necessarily takes a substantia l period to get ready for it s 

intende d use. 

All othe r borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the 

effecti ve interest rate method . 

3.6 Ea rnings per share 

Basic ea rni ngs per share is calcu lated by dividing the net profit o r loss for the year attributable to equi ty 

shareho lde rs (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of e quity shares 

outs tanding during the pe riod. 

To calcu late diluted ea rnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equit y 

shareho lde rs and the weighted average number of shares ou tstanding during the period arc adjus ted 

for the e ffects of all diluti ve potential equity sha res. 

3.7 Foreign Currency Translation 

foreigll CllrrellCY traltsactions and balallces 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resul ting from the settlemen t of such transactions and the rl' ­

mCtls urement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange ra tes nrc 

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in 

the consolidated financial s tatements before 0151 April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in .. 

"Forcign Cu rrency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account" and amo rtized ove r thc ba lance 

period o f such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such peri ods. 

Non-mo netary items are not retrans lated at period -end and are measured at historical cost (translated 

using the exchange rates a t the transaction date). 

3.8 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Recogllitioll and initial measurement 

Land 

Land he ld for use is initi ally recognized at cost. For land, as no fin ite useful life can be determined, 

related carrying amounts are not amortized. 

Land a lso includes land treated as a Right o f Use asset unde r lease agreement earlier classified as 

finance lease and is :?"':""';;':. 



Other T angible assets 

PPE o ther than land is initia lly recognized at acqu is itio n cost o r construction cost, including an y costs 

direc tly attribu table to bringing the assets to the location and cond ition necessary for it to b e capnble of 

opera ti ng in the manner in tended by the Group's management. 

Subseq uent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recogni zed as a separ ate asS(.' t, as 

approp ri ate, on ly when it is probable that future economic benefits associa ted with the item will flow to 

the Group beyond one yea r. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the S tatement of 

Profi t and Loss as incurred . 

SIIiJscqlle1lt menSllremell t (depreciation method, li se f ill lives, residual vallie, and impnirmellt ) 

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumu lated depreciation and impairnlenl losses. 

Deprecia tion on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the asset's as 

presc ribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciatio n on assets purchased/sold d uri ng the year is charged for the fu ll month if the asset is in use 

fo r mo re than 15 days. Deprecia tion on assets purchased du ring the yea r up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided ~d 

100%. 

The residual values, usefu l lives, and method of deprecia tion are reviewed at the end of each finan cial 

yea r. PPE othe r than land is tested for impairment whenever events o r changes in ci rcumstances 

indica te tha t the ca rrying amoun t may not be recoverable. 

De-r!:('ox 11 i t iOIl 

An item of PPE and any significant part in itia lly recognized is derecognized upon d isposal o r when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use o r d isposa l. Any gain or loss aris ing on dl' ­

recognition o f an item of prE is determined as the d ifference between the net d isposal p roceeds and Ihe 

carrying am ount of the asset and is recognized in the Statemen t of Profit and Loss. 

Capital Work-ill-Progress 

The cost of PPE under cons truction at the reporting date is di sclosed as 'Capital wo rk-in-p rog ress.' The 

cos t com prises purchase price, borrowing cos t if capitali zation criteria are met and d irectly a tt ributable 

cost o f b ring ing the asset to its wo rki ng cond ition for the in tended use. Any trade d iscount a nd rebnl't·s 

are deducted in arriving at the purchase p rice. Ad vances pa id for the acquisition/ construction of PPE 

which a re o utsta nd ing at the ba lance sheet date are classi fied under 'Capital Ad vances.' 

3.9 Intang ible assets 

Rt:COS'lilioll and itlitial measllrement 

Intangible assets are initia lly measu red at cost. Such assets a re recogni zed where it is p robable that the 

futu re economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the Group . 

SI/bseql/wt measurement (amortization method, li se fill lives alld residual vallie) 

All in tangib le assets with finite useful life are am ortized on a strai ght li ne basis over the estimntcd 

useful lives, and a possible im pairmen t is assessed if there is an ind ication that the in tangible asset mny 



lll/rlllsible Assets LInder Development 

Expenditure incurred which a re eligible fo r capitaliza tion unde r intangible assets i s Glrried m; 

' Intang ible assets under deve lopment' till they are ready fo r thei r intended use. Ad vances pn id for the 

acquis itio n! developmen t of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sh eet dnlc arc 

classified under 'Capi ta l Advances'. 

Dcn'c{)~lIitioJt of Illtflltgib/e Assets 

An intangible asset is derecogni zed on disposa l, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 

use or di sposa l. Cains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangi ble asset, mea s ured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the ca rrying amou nt of the asset are recogni zed in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

3,10 lease accounting: 

The C roup recognises a right-of-use asset and related lease liabi lity in connection with all former 

opera ting leases excep t for those identified as short-term or low-va lue lease. 

The C ro up assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, o r contains, a lease. A lease is defi ned ns 

'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) fo r a peri od 

of time in exchange fo r consideration'. 

To apply th is definition, the Croup assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations wh ich arc 

whethe r: 

the con tract conta ins an identified asset, which is either exp licitly identified in the con tract or 

implicitly spec ified by being iden ti fied at the time the asse t is made ava ilable to the Croup 

the G roup has the ri ght to obtain substantially all of the econo mic benefits from usc of till' 

iden ti fied asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of till' 

contract 

the C roup has the ri ght to direct the use o f the identified asset throughout the period of usc. The 

C roup assess whether it has the right to direct ' how and fo r wha t purpose' the asset i!'i used 

throughout the period of usc. 

At lea!Se commencement date, the Group recognizes a righl-of-use asset and a lea~e liability on the 

balance sheet. The right-of-use asse t is measured al cost, which is made up of the initial measu rement of 

the lease liabili ty, any initia l direct costs incurred by the C roup, an estimate of any costs to dismant le 

and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease paymen ts made in advance of the lease 

commencement date (net o f any incenti ves received). 

The C ro up deprecia tes the right-of-use assets on a straight-l ine bas is from the lease commencement 

date to the ea rlier of the end of the useful life o f the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The 

Croup also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when s ll ch indicato rs exist. 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease li ability at the present va lue of the lease 

payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implici t in the lease if that rate is 

re<ldily <lvailable o r the Croup's incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments 

(including in 5uJ~~~ni~~:ar ;;ab le 
li ability are m<lde up of fixed payments 

index o r rate, amou nts be 
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payable under a residual va lue guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be 

exe rcised . 

Subseq uent to initial measurement, the liabili ty wi ll be reduced for payments made and incren~d for 

intc rcs t. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment o r modification, or if there are changes in in ­

subs tilnce fixed payments. 

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the rig ht -of-uSt.' 

asse l, o r profit and loss if the right-oE-use asset is already reduced to zero. 

3.11 Assets held for sale 

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carry ing amount will be recovered principally through a 

sa le tra nsaction rather th an through continuing use and the sale is high ly probable. A sale is considered 

as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be so ld by the Group; are available for 

immedia te sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed fo r sale at a price and the sa le has 

been ag reed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification. Such assets arc 

measured at lower of carry ing amoun t or fa ir value less selling costs. 

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and arc not 

depreciated or amorti sed while they are classified as held fo r sale. 

Where the Group is committed to a sa le plan involving loss of control of an entity, it classifies 

in vestment in the entity (Le. all the assets and liabilities of that entity) as held fo r sale. 

3.12 Fina ncial Ins truments 

A Firlilncial instrumen t is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finan cial 

liabilit y o r equity instrument of another entity . 

/"ilial recognition alld measurement 

Finilncia l assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjus ted by 

transactio ns costs, except fo r those carried at fair va lue through p rofit or loss which are measured 

in itia ll y at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is dl.:.'Scribed 

below. 

Clas~ification and subsequcllt measurement of jina/tcial assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories 

upon in iti al recogn ition: 

• Amo rtized cos t 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit o r loss (F VTPL) 

• Financial assets at fair va lue th rough other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL o r at FVOCI are subject to review fo r impairment at Icast 

at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or il 

g roup of financial assets 

ca tego ry of finan':~~~~~~~h 

Amortized cost 



A financia l asset is measured at amortized cost us ing Effecti ve [nterest Rate (EIR) if both of the 

follow ing conditions are met: 

a) the fina ncia l asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets t'O 

co llect con tractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thai ,In.' solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principa l amoun t outs tand ing. 

Impairment Allowance (expected credit loss) is recognized on financial assets ca rried al amorti zed cost. 

ModificlItion of clIsh flows 

When the contractual cash flows of a financia l asset a re renegotiated or otherwise modifi ed, and the 

renegotiation o r modification does not result in derecognition of that fin ancial asset , the Group 

reC.llcu la tes the g ross carry ing amount of the financial asse l and recognizes a modification ga in or loss 

in profit or [ass. The gross carrying amount of the financial asse t shall be recalculated as the present 

value o f the renegotiated or mod ified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the finan cial asse t's 

origina l e ffecti ve interest rate. Any costs o r fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified 

financia l asset and are amorti zed over the remaining term of the modified financia l asset. 

Fi//(lI/cia/lIssets at FVTPL 

Financia l assets at FVfPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amorti zed cost 

classification or are equity instruments held for trading o r that meet certai n condi tions and arc 

designated at FVfPL upon initial recognition. All de rivative financial ins truments also fall into this 

ca tegory, except for those des igna ted and effective as hedg ing instruments, for which the hedge 

accounti ng requirements may apply. Assets in this ca tegory are measured at fair value with gains (Ir 

losses recogni zed in profil o r loss. The fa ir va lues o f fin ancial assets in this catego ry are de termi ned by 

refe rence to active market transacti ons or using a va luation technique where no acti ve marke t exists. 

[II/bedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-deri va ti ve host 

contracl with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrumen t va ry in a way s imilar to 

a sland-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all o f the cash flows thai o lherwiSl..' 

would be requ ired by the contract to be modified according 10 a speci fied interest ratc, foreig n 

exchange rate, or other va ri ab le, provided that, in the case of a non-financial va riable, it is not specific to 

a party to the contract. 

Deriva ti ves e mbedded in all host contracts are accoun ted fo r as separate deri vatives and recorded at 

fair va lue if their economic characte ris tics and risks are not closely related to those of the hos t contracts 

or if the embedded de rivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts a re no t held for 

trading o r d eSigna ted at fair value though profit o r loss. These embedded derivatives are measured al 

fair va lue wi th changes in fair value recognised in profit o r loss, unless designated as effective hedging 

instruments. 

Fillancial assets fit FVOCI 

instruments measured at fa ir va lue. An equity inves tmen t 



except fo r div idend income, which is recognized in profi t or loss. There is no recycling of such gains 

and losses from oel to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment. 

However, the G roup may transfer the same with in equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and cond it ions 

have been renegoti ated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the d ifferen ce 

recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the ex tent that an im pairment loss has not already been 

reco rded . 

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substanti al modifi cation 

Financial assets (o r where applicable, a pa rt of financial asset o r part of a group of similar financial 

assets) a re de recognized (i.e. removed from the Gro up 's balance sheet) when the contractu al rights to 

rece ive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, o r when the financia l asset and 

substan tially all the risks and rewards are transfe rred . The Group also derecogn izes the fi nancial assct if 

it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies fo r derecognition. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of financialliabilit ies 

Financia l li abi li ties are measured subsequently at amortized cost us ing the effective inte rest method, 

excep t fo r financia l liabil ities held for trading or deSignated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at 

fa ir value with gains or losses recognized in profit o r loss. 

Dcrccogl1itiOlt of financial liabilities 

A fina ncia l li ab ili ty is derecognized when the obliga tion under the li ability is discharged or cancel led or 

expires. When an existing fi nancial li ability is replaced by another from the same lender o n 

substantially different terms or the terms of an ex isting li ability are subs tantially modi fi ed, such an 

exchange o r modifica tion is treated as the derecognition of the origina l liabi lity and the recognition of Ll 

new li ab ili ty. The difference in the respecti ve ca rryi ng amounts is recognized in the stateme nt of profit 

or loss. 

1-1cdSe (I CCO LI /ttiug 

To qual ify for hedge accoun ting, the hedging relationship must meet a ll of the following req ui rements: 

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging ins trument 

- the effect of credi t risk does not dominate the va lue changes that resul t from that economic 

relationsh ip 

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the sam e as that resu lting from the quantity of the 

hedged item that the enti ty actu ally hedges and the quant ity of the hedging instrument that the entity 

act uall y uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

Al l deri va ti ve fin ancia l instruments deSignated unde r hedge accounting are recognised initia ll y at fair 

va lue and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the ex tent that the hedge is 

effecti ve, changes in the fa ir value of derivatives des ig nated as hedging instruments in cash fl ow hedges 

are recognised III 

equ ity, Any i', ,eflCect 
'" 



At the time the hedged item affects profit o r loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in o ther 

comprehe nsive income is reclassified from equ ity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassi fication 

ad jus tment within other comprehensive income. 

At thc inception of each hedg ing relationshi p, the Grou p formally designates and documents the hedge 

relat ionsh ip, in accordance with the Group's risk management objective and strategies. The 

docu mentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedgi ng instrument, the natu n~ of risk(s ) 

being hedged, the hedge ra tio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effecti veness 

requi rements. 

Fflir Vallie Hedges 

In li ne with the recognition of change in the fair va lue of the hedging instruments in the S tatement of 

Profit & Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the ris k hedged is 

recogni sed in the Statement o f Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carry ing amount of the 

hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interes t Ra te in the period when the hedging instrument 

ceases to ex it. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamo rtised fair value is recognised immediately 

in Sta teme nt of Profit and Loss. 

3.13 Impairment of financial assets 

wall assets 

The Group follows a ' three-stage' model for impairment in the fo rm of Expected Credi t Loss (ECL) 

based on changes in credit quality since in itial recogn ition as summarised below: 

• Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit ri sk s incc initi al 

recognition o r that have low cred it risk at the reporting date. 

• Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a s ign ificant increase in credit risk s ince initial recogni tion 

bu t that do not have objective ev idence of im pairment. 

• Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective ev idence o f impairment at the reporting date. 

The Expec ted Credit l oss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECl for Stage 1 loan assets and li fet ime ECL 

for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECl is the product o f the Probability of Default, Exposu re at Defaul t 

and loss G iven Default , defi ned as follows: 

Probability of Default (PO) - The PO represents the li kelihood of the borrower defaulting on its 

obl igation e ither ove r next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LCD represents the Company's expectation of loss g iven that a defa u lt 

occurs. LCD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amoun t that will actuall y be 

lost post recoveries in case of a default. 

Exposu re at Default (EAD) - EAO rep resents the amounts, including the principal outstand ing. in terest 

accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Compan y expects to be owed at the time of defaul t. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PO, EAO 

and LGD. The assumptions unde rlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. 



Financial assets other thall Lonns 

In res pect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit ri sk on those financial assl'ls h .. s 

increased sign ificantly since initia l recogni tion. If the credit risk has not increased signifi cc1IlIly s ince 

initi al recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected 

cred it losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a defau lt occurring on the financia l assl'l .. s .. t 

the ba la nce sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the finan cial asset as at the date of inili .. l 

recognitio n. The Group also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is ,w .. ilil ble 

without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of sig nifican t increases in cred it risk s ince initi .. 1 

recognition. The Group assumes that the cred it risk on a financial asset has not increased s igni ficilll tly 

s ince in itial recognition if the finan cial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the ba J .. nce shee t 

date. 

Write-offs 

Financia l assets are written off either partia ll y or in their entirety onl y when the Group has Sl"oppl'd 

pursuing the recovery or as d irected by the o rder of the Judicial Authority. 

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents 

e .. sh <lnd cash equi valents compri se cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other 5ho l"t ­

term, highly liqu id investments (original maturi ty less than three months) that are readily convertibll' 

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.15 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity 

Proposed di vidends and interim div idends payable to the sha reholders are recognized as ch il nges in 

equ ity in the period in w hich they are approved by the shareholders' meeting and the Board o f 

Directo rs respecti vely. Liability for the payments to the holde rs of instruments classified as equit y nl"l' 

recogn ized in the pe riod when such payments are authori zed for payment by the Group. 

3.16 Material prior period errors 

Materi a l prior period erro rs are co rrected retrospectively by restating the comparati ve amo un ts fo r the 

p rior pe riods p resented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earl iest period 

prese nted, the opening balances of assets, liab ilities and equity for the ea rliest pe riod p resented, a rc 

res t<ltcd. 

3.17 Prepaid Expenses 

A p re pa id expense up to Rs. l,()(),OOD/- is recogn ized as expense upon in iti al recognition. 

3.18 Taxation 

Tax expense recognized in profi t o r loss comprises the sum of defe rred tax and cu rrent tax . It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI o r 



Current tax is determined as the tax payable in res pect of taxab le income for the year, uS_ing t('lX ril tes 

enacted or substantively enacted and as applica ble at the repo rting date, and any adjustments to I('IX 

payable in respect of previous yea rs. 

Defe rred ta x is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assL'is i"lnd 

li abi lities in the consolida ted financial statemen ts and the corresponding tax bases -u sed in thl' 

compu tation of taxable income. 

Deferred tax assets and liabi li ties are calcu lated, without discou nting, a t ta x rates that are expected to 

apply to their respective period of realiza tion, prov ided those rates are enacted o r substanti v cly eni1cled 

by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a lega Jly 

enfo rceable ri gh t to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they re late to income taxes levied by the 

same tax autho ri ty. 

Deferred tax liabili ty is recogn ized for all taxable temporary differences. A defe rred t ax asset is 

rl.'Cognized for all deductible tempo ra ry differences to the extent th at it is probable that future taxable 

profits w ill be ava ilable against which the deductible tempora ry diffe rence can be utili zed. Deferred ti1X 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probnble 

th at the related tax benefit w ill be rea lized . 

Changes in deferred tax assets o r liabilities a re recognized as a component of tax income o r expense in 

profi t o r loss, except where they rela te to items that are recogn ized in other comprehensive income or 

d irec tly in equity, in wh ich case the rela ted defe rred tax is also recognized in o ther comprehe nsiVl.' 

income o r equ ity, respectively. 

3.19 Employee benefits 

Sho rt-term employee benefits 

Short-te rm employee benefits incl uding sa laries, short term compensa ted absences (such as a pn id 

an nual leave) where the absences are expected to occur wi thin twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable with in 

twe lve months after the end of the period in wh ich the employees render the related se rvices and non­

monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscOllllted basis. 

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution 

plans as under: 

DcfimYi cOlltribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under w hich the Group pays fi xed contributions in respect o f the 

em ployees in to a separate fund. The Group has no legal o r constnl ctive obligatio ns to pay furthe r 

contributions afte r its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the Group towilfds 

defined contribution plans are charged to the p rofi t or loss in the period to which the cont rib ut ions 

relate. 

Defined bCllcfit plan 

The Group has an obligation towards Gratuity, Post-Retiremen t Medica l Faci lity (PRMF), Provident 

Fu nd (PF) and at 



rece ive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final sala r y , ilnd othcr 

defined parameters. The lega l ob ligation for any benefits remains with the Group, even if plan nsscls for 

fu nding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The G ro up's obliga ti on towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit cred it 

me thod , with actua ria l valuations being ca rried out at the end of each annu al reporting p l.' riod . The 

liabi lity recognized in the statement of fin ancia l position for defined benefit plans is the present va lue or 

the Defined Benefit Ob ligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair va lue of plan nsscls. 

Ma nagement estima tes the DBO an nuall y with the assistance of independent actuaries. 

Actuarial gainstlosses resu lting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other 

Com pre hensive Income. 

Other long-term employee benefits: 

Li abi li ty in respect of compensated absences becoming due or ex pected to be avai led mo r e than onc­

YCM afte r the balance sheet date is estimated o n the basis of actuaria l valuation perfo rmed by an 

inde pendent actua ry using the projected unit credit method. 

Act uari a l gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assump tions a rc 

charged to statement o f profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined. 

Loan to employees at concessional ra te 

Lonns g iven to employees at concessional rate are in itia lly recognized at fair va lue and subsequen tly 

Illensure d at amortised cost. The d iffe rence between the ini tial fair va lue of such loans and tranS<lct ion 

va luc is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line bas is ove r thl.' 

expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of th e Loan, the 

unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised ove r the updated ex pectcd 

rema ining period of the loan on a p rospecti ve basis. 

3.20 Provis ions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 

Provi sions are recognized when the Group has a presen t legal or constructive obliga tion as a result of a 

past event; it is p robable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group n., d 

amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may s till be unce rtain . Prov isions 

are measured at the es timated expenditure required to settle the present obl iga tion, based o n the most 

rel iable ev idence availab le at the reporting date, including the ri sks and uncerta in ties associated with 

the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their p resent values, where the time va lue of money 

is material. 

A cont ingent liability is disclosed fo r: 

• Poss ible obl igations which will be confirmed only by futu re events not wholly within the contro l of 

the G roup or 

Present obligations ariSing from past even ts where it is not probable that an outflow o f resourCt's 

wi ll be requi red to settle the ob liga tion or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obl iga tion ca nnot 

be made. 

In those cases, wh ;!!>iIl<~ 

imp robable or,,~~i:;:;;<1 
." .~ 



Any re imbu rsement that the Grollp can be vi rtually certain to collect from a third pa rty con ce rnin g the 

obligation (such as from insurance) is recogni zed as a separate asse t. However, this asset may not 

exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Cont ingent assets are not recognized. However, when the in fl ow of economic benefits is pTobnblt'. Ihe 

rela ted asset is disclosed. 

3.21 Fair value measurement 

The G roup measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fai r value at each repo rti ng datt'o 

Fa ir value is the price that would be received to sell an asset o r paid to transfer a li abili ty in an o rderl y 

transaction between market pa rticipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurem e nt is based 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfe r the liability takes place either: 

• In the p ri ncipal market for the asset o r liability, or 

• In the absence o f a p rincipal market. in the most ad vantageous market for the asset or liab ili ty 

The principal or the most advan tageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair va lue of an asset or a liabili ty is measured using the assumptions that market participa nts 

wou ld use when p ricing the asset or liability, includ ing assumptions about risk. assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial assc ttakes 

into account a marke t participant' s abi lity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and bes t use o r by selling it to another market pa rticipant that would use the asset in its highest and 

bes t use. 

The G ro up uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the ci rcumstances and fo r whic h sufficient 

data a re available to measure fair value, max imizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimi zing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair va lue is measured or disclosed in the consolida ted fin ancial 

stateme nts are categorized with in the fair va lue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 

level input that is material to the fai r value measurement as a whole: 

• Level l - Quoted (u nadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or li ab ilities 

• Level 2 - Va luation techniques for which the lowest leve l in pu t that is material to the fai r va lue 

measurement is directly or ind irectly obse rvable 

• Level 3 - Valua tion techniques fo r which the lowest level input that is material to the fair va lue 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabil ities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements regularly, the 

Group dete rmines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hiera rchy by re-assess ing 

ca tegorization (based on the lowest level in put that is materia l to the fai r va lue measurement as a 

whole) at the end of each reporting period . 



3.22 Offsetting of finan cial instruments 

Financia l assets and financial li abili ties are offset and the net amoun t is reported in the bala nce sheet if 

there is a current ly enfo rceable legal right to offset the recognised amoun ts and there is an intention to 

settle o n a net basis, to rea lise the assets and settle the liab ilities simul taneously. 

3.23 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combination, if any, involving entities or bus inesses under common control is .1 bus iness 

combi nation in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ul tima tely con trolled b y the stl me 

part y o r parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not trans i t ory. 

Business combinations involvi ng entities or businesses under common control are accounted for lI sing 

the poo ling of inte rest method as follows: 

• The assets and liabil ities of the combin ing entities are reflected at their carryi ng amo u nts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets o r liabilit ies. 

Adjustments are made only to harmonise mate ria l accounting po licies. 

• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is re s ttl led .1S if 

the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding pe riod in the 

financia l statements, ir res pective of the actual date of the combination 

The balance of the reta ined ea rn ings appea ring in the financial s tatements of the tra nsfe ror is 

agg rega ted with the co rrespond ing ba lance appea ring in the financial s tatements of the tran sferee. TIll' 

identity of the rese rves is prese rved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the 

tra nsfe ree 

The d iffe rence, if any, between the amounts recorded as sha re capital issued p lus any addi tional 

consideration in the fo rm of cash or other assets and the amoun t of share capital of the transferor is 

transferred to cap ital reserve and is presented sepa rately from other cap ita l rese rves. 

3.24 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expend itu re on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities p remium account 

4. Implementation of Newl Modified Standards 

Du ring the yea r, the Min is try of Corporate Affa irs (MCA) has issued amend ments to certa in Ind AS. 

The G roup has ana lysed the impact of these amendments, which is not material to the Gro u p. Fu rt he r, 

Me A has not issued any new Ind ·AS applicable to the company. 

5. Material m anagement judgment in applying acco unting policies and estimation of uncertainty 

The pre pa ration of the Group's conso li dated financial statements requires management to make 

judgments, es ti mates, and assump ti ons that affect the repo rted amounts of revenues, ex penses, assets 

and li abilities, and the related d isclosures. The estimates and underly ing assumptions are based on 

historical ex perience & other re levant facto rs and a re rev iewed on an ongo ing basis. Actual results may 

differ from these estima tes. 



Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if any, are recognised in the period in w hich the 

estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision & (ullin . .' 

periods if it affects both current & futu re periods. 

Mll/erinl management judgments 

Recog nition of deferred tax assets/ liability - The exten t to which deferred tax assets can be rl'cogn izl'd 

is based on an assessmen t of the probabi li ty of the future taxable income agains t which the d dl' rred lax 

assets can be utili zed. Further, the Management has no intention to make withdrawal from the Spl.'Lial 

Rese rve created and majntained under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and thus, the 

special reserve created and maintained is nol capable of being reversed. Hence, the Group docs nol 

cre.1 le any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability on Undistributed Reserves of Group Companies - The 

a ppl icable tax laws prov ide for tax deduction in respect o f dividend income from equ ity investments, to 

the ex te nt of dividend declared by the Company to its shareholders during the year. Con Sidering the 

historica l information and dividend distribution policy of the Company, the Company does not expect 

any tax li ability on the undistributed reserves of the Group Companies, as and when such rese rves ;Hl' 

distributed. Hence, the Company does not crea te any defe rred tax liability on undis tributed rese rves of 

G rollp Companies. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability o f ind icators of 

impairment of assets req uires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 

dl'll' rio ration of recove rable amount o f the assets. 

Investment in SPVs - Transmission projects are managed as per the mandate from Governrnl:nt (}f 

Indin nnd the Group does not have the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these projL'Cts 

unilatera lly. The Group therefore cons iders its inves tment in respective SPYs as associates hnvi ng 

significant influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up equity share capita I. 

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - As a matter of prudence, income on 

credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when rece ived or on accrual basis when expc(:tcd 

realisa ti on is higher than the loan amount outstanding. 

Mfl/el"itl{ eslill/tlles 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful li ves of 
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the ex pected utility of the asset s. 
Unce rt ainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the 
utility o f assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (OSO) - Management's es timate of the DBO is based on a number o f 
unde rly ing assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of 
future sa lary increases. Variation in these assumptions may materially impact the DBO amount and the 
annual defined benefit ex penses. 



Income Taxes - Material estimates are involved in determ ining the provIsIon fo r inc olll(, l<lxes, 
incl uding amount expected 10 be paid/ recove red for uncertain tax positions and al so in n'spect o f 
ex pected future profitabili ty to assess deferred lax asset. 

Expected Credit loss ('ECl') - The measurement of an expecled credit loss a llowance f or fin<lndal 
asscts measured at amortized cost requi res the use of complex models and significant a ssu mptions 
about future economic cond itions and credit behav iour (e .g., likelihood of customers de f nulling .. nd 
resu lting losses). The Group makes s ignificant judgments about the fo llowing while assess ing l'x pected 
credit loss to es timate ECl : 

• Determin ing crite ri a for a significan t increase in cred it risk; 

• Estab lishing the number and relati ve weightings of forward -looking scenarios fo r e ach ty pe of 

product/ market and the associated ECL; and 

• Es tablishing g roups of similar financial assets to measure Ee L. 

• Estimating the probability of default and loss given defau lt (estimates of recove rable amounts in 

case o f defaul t) 



6 Cash and ciI5h equivalen ts 

r~r1icuL1rs 

. Cash on Hand (induding imprrst) 

. 8~13nces with Hanks 

. in nJrre nt accounts 

. d~'p<,~its with origin~1 malurity of 3 months Qr 1e9 

Particulars 

- Earmarked Bilbncu wi th Sank!! 

- Fur unpaid dividends 

- Fur Government funds for onward disbursement as grant 

- EMm",ked Term Deposits 

- Dc-posi ts in Compliance or Court Order 

- 8al3nces with banks notavailablr for uS\" pending 

allotmen t of 54EC Capita] Gain Tax uemptio n Bonds 

·OtherTerm deposits 

As OIl 3{J-09·2024 

Total 

AS at 3{J..(l9-2024 

Total 

0.08 

781.18 

3,89U8 

4,675.44 

148.76 

SS.J5 

0.69 

559.50 

221.19 

1,0'18 .49 

( , ". I .'"r..,;) 
As .• t 3H13·21124 

!Ul2 

1>7.(,5 

1'6.1)11 

2"2.75 

(~ ". I ... "'~") 
As 3t 31-03-2024 

t , I'n.n 

(,'J.'\.<; 

1'11.411 

2, I>'I'I.1S 



8 Derivative Financial Instrument. 

(i) 

(iiI 

(iii 

(iii] 

The Company enters in to derivatives for hedging fordgn exchange risks and interest rate risk,. Derivatives held fa ,· ri~1., """"'f:"",,"nt 

purposes include hedges that are either designated as cffc~1ivc hedge. under the hedge accounting requirements ,,,. h"d):,· , th.,t ." ... 

,,<,anomie hedges. nu~ t~blc below shows the f..ir values of derivative fi nancial instrumenls ,ecorded as assels or lidbi r iti,'~ ,,,);,·th,·, wi th 
their notional amounts. 

P.r11 

fin t . ..., ...... 
P .. r1iculars As ~I JG..09..2024 As't3 1 -03_202~ 

Notion .. 1 F"ir Valu~- hir V~lu~- NoIion~1 hirVa lue< I'air V~I"e< 
Amounts Assets liabilities Amount , Asse ts U~bi lit i ~ .• 

Currency Drriva t iv~5 

- Currency swaps 3, 142.08 "'.65 251.16 3.126.52 4 3.34 3M. l.l 

- Other< 

- Call Spread · · · · · · 
- Sedgull Options IA5.:m.90 16.91J.96 1.907.33 1.21.107.2-1 11,070.97 4t 1.112 

Sub.tot,1 Ii) 1,48,479.98 17,323.61 2,158.49 1.24,233.76 11,1.14.3 1 H'J.'JS 
In llT~5t R .. le Derivative" 

• FOI"Ward Rate Agreements and lntell$t Rate Swaps 9-1,910.08 521.78 786.82 72,128.13 1,367.71 Jm.75 
S"b-tot.1 (ii) 94,910.08 521 .78 ".., 72,128.13 1,367.71 JOlJ.75 
Olher derivativu 

- Re ..... rse Cl"tWj c:u rTl.'1lC)' Swaps · · · · · · 
Total- Derivati ve Fin .. ncia l lnstrumenls (i + ii+iii) 2,43,390.06 11,845.39 t9~5.31 1,96,361.89 12,482.02 ?59.?1l 

!'arl II 

Included in Part t are deri'"~ti,"cs held for hedging and ri sk m~nagement purp05e" as below, 

( t in ('r",,·s 
Particular. A. at 30-09-2024 As at 31-03_2{I24 

Notion,1 hir Value- Fair Value - Notional hirVa lue _ Fdir V~lu~ -

Amount. Au ets liabilities Amount. Assets I.i .. bili ti ~~ 
Fai r Value Hedging 
-tntn .. st Rolle Derivatives 

- For .... ~rd Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 13,995.70 6 1.09 133.78 15,950.70 · :m.7.l 
Sub·total Ii] lJ,99S.70 61.09 133.78 15,950.70 · 2'J7.73 

C~sh Flow Hedging 

• Currency Deri~ .. "ve, 

. C""enq ' Sw~ps 3, 142.08 ~ ()9.65 251.16 3. 126.52 43 . J~ .111.1.1 
- Others 

- C.IISp .... ad · · · · · 
-~agu 11 Options 1.45.337.90 16.913.96 1,907.33 1,21,107.24 11,070.96 411.112 

- lnle, ... 1 Rate D .. riw.tiv~' 

. Forwud lYle "'g~n_l5.nd 101le~ lYle S ..... ps 74,2 1U8 112.18 653.'" ~9,4n.43 9OS.JIl 12.112 
Sub-total (ii) 2,22,6906 17,435.7':1 2jll l.53 1,73,711.19 12.ol9.60 461 .97 

Undesigna led Derivatiws 6,700.00 348.51 · 6.700.00 462.42 
Tol .. l- Derivative Financial Instruments (i+;i+iiil 2,43,390.06 11,845.39 2.945.31 1.96.361 .89 12,482.02 759.71l 



9 Receivables 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables 

Unsecured, Considered good 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

(i i) Trade receivilbles which have significant incresc in credit risk 

(iii) 

" Ii) 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Credit impaired receivables 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Other Receivables 

Unsecured, Considered good 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Sub-Total-l /i+ii+iiil 

Sub-Total-Il /i+ii+iiiJ 

Total Receivables (1+11) 

(~ in Crorcs 
As at 30-09-2024 As at 31-03-202<1 

151.57 115.1J 

(S.!!3) (S.83) 

142.14 106.30 

77.20 58.90 

(16.58) (16.58) 

60.62 .f2.32 

6H7 39.46 

(60.92) (3<1.26) 
8.55 5.20 

211.91 153.82 

"8 
. · 

3.68 · 
3.68 · 

215.59 153.82 



10 l.o~n 5 

11 .... Company h.~ c. t~orised atlklans al Amortised Cost in acrordal'l«' wilh the rcqui..,mL'flIS oI lnet AS 109. 

1M 
(i) 

(ii) 

'" (iJ 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(au 
Ii) 

Iii) 

, 

(O UI , 

P~rlicul .. s 

I.n~ n s 

Ter", r.<>",lS 

W"rking C apit,,1 Tenn LO.II'5 

IA"'~: Impairment 10$ll allowanc" 

Sr<u';t)' Deta ils 

Si.'l' ur<'l! by tangible assets 

Cuwmd by Government Guaran tees 

U"" . ..::urL'd 

I.",.;; Imp"irment Io$s .. Jlo" 'M'IC1;' 

Loans in India 

I'uloli<' X'i: to r 

I'tiv.,lt'Sector 

... """ Impairment.ass allowance 

I.o~nsoutsidr I ndi~ 

I ,~ .... ~: Itnpairmcntloss al1o"' ~nc", 

Tolal (AI - G ross I.o .. ns 

Tot .. I !A). Nd Loans 

Total (8) _ Gross I.oans 

Tnt .. ] (O). Nr! 1.000 ns 

TOlal (QUJ· Gross I.oans 

TOI~ I (0(1)· Nd Lo.ns 

Total (OU I) - Nd l.oaM 

Total (CHIl .nd (C)(III 

As a l 30-09-2024 

Princip.1 01, Amorlls~d Coo! 

4,88,6&1.25 4,91,059.07 

57.452.71 57,796.39 

5,46, 116.% 5,48,855.46 

(12.708,00) (12.708.00) 

5,33,408.96 5,36,147,46 

2,60,0!I0.99 2,60,805.57 

2,40,096 .711 2,41,00.02 

45,939.19 46,166.87 

5,46, 116.96 5,48,855.46 

(12,70!UlO) (12,701:1.(10) 

5,33,408.96 5,36,147.46 

4.80,818.20 4,&3,626.21 

65,298.76 65,229.25 

5,46, 116,96 5,48,855.46 

(12,708.00) (12,708.00) 

5,33,408.96 5,36,147,46 

· · 
· · 
· · 

5,33,408,96 5,36,147.46 

~ ", 1 ... "' ... 
As ;)1 3]'(lJ-2024 

Prin<lpaIO/ .. A''''''li.~d C" .t 

4,62.090.27 ·1,1 .\,I7">."t 
47.280.(011 47 ... ~II,.'N, 

5,09,370.95 5, 11,572.57 

(12.380.52) / 12.1HCI. '.2) 

4,96,990.'13 ~,')9,I'12,05 

2,47,650.5.1 2.4",205.'JII 
2,24,500 ..19 2,25.%7.,,", 

37,219.')2 37 .. 1"lI.n 
5,09,370.95 5, 11 ,572.57 

(12.380.52) ( 12.JHtl.5~) 

4,96,990.43 4,9"1, 1'12 ,05 

4,5-',647.0.'1 4,<;t"H"'1 :!II 
~,723.M7 S·I,I,7~. 2(1 

5,1)9,370.95 5, 11,5?Z,51 

(12,380.52 ) (I ~:lHU5~1 

4,%,990,43 . ,9"I, 1'I2'(IS 

· . 
· 
· . 

4,96,990.43 4 ,'I", I~ 2.1'S 



11 Investments 

( ~ in Crores 
Particulars Amortised At fair value Sub-total Others (At Total 

Cos t Through Other Through profit Designated at Cost) 
Comprehensive or loss fa ir value 

Income through profit or 

loss 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5; 1+2+3+4) (6) (7=5~) 
As at 30th September, 202~ 

Government Securities 1,622.92 · · · 1,622.92 · 1,622.92 
Debt Securities 3,618.54 · 971.93 · ~, 590.47 · 4,590.~7 
Equity Instruments · 435.38 141.63 577.01 · 577.01 
Preference Shares 28.72 · · · 28.72 · 28.72 
Total - Gross (A) 5,270.18 435.38 1,113.56 · 6,819.12 · 6,819.12 
Investments out~ide India · · · · . · 

Investments in India 5,270.18 435.38 1.113.56 6,819.12 · 6,819.12 
Total- Gross (B) 5,270.18 435.38 1,113.56 · 6,819.12 · 6,819.12 
Total Investments 5,270.18 435.38 1,1 13.56 · 6,819.12 · 6,819.12 
Less: impairment loss allowance (C) (28.72) · · · (28.72) · (28.72) 
Total - Net (D=A-C) 5,241.46 435.38 1,113.56 · 6,790.40 · 6,790.40 

As at 31s t March, 2024 

Government Secu rities 1,624.08 · · 1,624.08 · 1,624.08 
Debt Securities 2,176.20 1,!165.03 · 3,241.23 · 3,241.23 
Equi ty Instruments · 410.64 76.37 · 487.01 · 487.01 
Preference Shares 28.72 · · · 28.72 · 28.72 
Total · Gross (A) 3,829.00 410.64 1,141.40 · 5,381.04 · 5,381.04 
Inves tments outside India · · · · . · . 
Investments in India 3,829.00 410.64 J,J41.40 · 5,381.04 · 5,381.04 
Total- Gross (8) 3,829.00 410.64 1,141.40 · 5,381.04 · 5,381.04-
Totallnvcstments 3.829.00 410.64 1,141.40 · 5,381.04 · 5,381.04 
Less: impairment loss allowance (C) (28.72) · · · (28.72) · (11.71) 
Total - Net (D: A-C) 3,800.28 410.64 1,141.40 · 5,352.32 · 5,352.32 

~r.?" ·:'!~, ~~ 

~ 
1 

) 
~::;.~ 

) , 1 ~ ~ J 



12 Oth~ r financial assets 

The Company has categorised all the components lUld~r 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised CO'lt in acrordance lVith the r .. quir .. men t .. "I Io,d AS tm, 

Pdrticulars 

fA) II.0d ns to Employees 

(IH Advdnces to Employeu 

10 Recoverable from Holding Company 

10) Security Deposits 

IE) Adv~nce paid to"'nds vuiation margin 

IF) Recoverab le fro m Government of India 

Tow",ds Col Fully Serviced Bond~ 

IG ) Other ~mounls recoverable 

l,l'Ss' Impairment Loss ~llo",anCl' 

Other Amounts Recoverable (Nel) 

13 Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Ad"an", Income· tax & TOO 

1.I."s: I'rovision for Income Tax 

T,,~ I ~posited on income tax dem'and. under contest 

Provision for income tax for demand under contest 

Current tJ~ assets (Net) 

I~ Ddc"ed tax assets (net) 

I'Mticu]ars 

Oeferred Tn A.sets INet) 

As at 3O"{)9-2024 

Total (A 10 F) 

As at 3O..{)9-1024 

Sub-Tota l (1) 

Sub-Total m 

As at 3O"{)9-1024 

67.63 

W, 
)85 

2.25 

117.18 

24.317.88 

!O5,()8 

(49 ,83) 

55.25 

24,563.64 

225.17 

(O,SO) 

224.3? 

5.20 

(0.25) 

4.95 

229.32 

2,967.93 

~ ju (" " , .. , 

A s .I t .I t-OJ -20H 

57.' ") 

O.'HI 

(1, 51 

2·t.) t'fAIl 

JJ 2, HI, 

11>7.7'J) 

IoS.U? 

2~,HS ,4 2 

l in LT<>"" 
As at 31-03-2024 

.1(l.~ . , t 7 

(fUIII) 

.1O~ .Io? 

.~ , ~/o 

(II . ~;' ) 

S.ur 
.1O'J ,hS 

I ~ III ('r",., ·, 
As at ,1 1·03-2024 

2,SIM f.'lh 



! -, j I, 
P! H , 

• 

J 

jl 

• I ;: 

1 

i 

• 

; ; • • 



16 Other non·finud.ol ~_ .. 

"articulol1 
UllH<\lrtd. co ... id~ftd sood 

(A, Capital Adv_ 
(8) Othrr Ad.an," 
(0 lbIances with Go.rrl\ltlenl Authorilin 
(D) Pre-Spe-nl Corpor.!eSodaJ h'ponfibiUty (C<;R) Experu;n 

(E) Pr~aid bpen .... 
(F) Deferred Emp.oy ... Co.! 
(C) Othe, AsMtI 

17 AsHIs d lNified.t htld fo, ta.e 

... rtie .... 11 

~I Ditpot.ol Cro .... 

Ii) InVfltmtnl in aJlO(i' !n 

(ii) Loanl 10 associaln 

(ii i) Provision lor impairmtnl on.~ d ... ill""' .. htld for salt 
Sub-Tow (i.,;",'" 

,OJ AsId5 a.!JI~ as Htld for Sale-Building 

TOI;II(8) 
Gr.nd Total (A-8) 
Liabilitin d irtct1y a.s.tOci.oolo!d with 'SSfIs clusifitd as htld for s.alt 

ICI rayablt 10 &$toeU.ln 
Toll.l (O 

Ntl AsHtI he ld fors.ale ·.C 

As .110-09·2024 

Toll.l (AloC) 

As .130-49·2024 

22.14 

~" 

27.68 
.9.'16 

"" , .. 
-

'" 0.01 .. , ..... 
-
-
." 

"'" C, As ~t 31-03-2G24 

It In 
As . 1 31..oJ.2024 

0.17 

"CO 
'"'' S.1<1 

22m 
1.5.81 

0.01 

117.0J 

c .. " .... , 
0.'" 

19.2S 

-
10. IS 

0." 
0.05 

20.20 

20.20 



~ III l ' n""~ 
r~rti cu1ar5 As ~130-O9-2024 As " 1 .11 ·0.1·2014 

(AI T,~d~ I'apbk. 

Tot.,1 ,>uts landing dut'S of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0. 11 
T" t .• 1 "ut~ t ~l1ding ducs other than microcnterl'ri ses and small enterprises 126.78 '~',~ I 

S"b-fo l .. 1 126.89 <J(I..~1 

(BJ Othe r I'a),abLu 

Tnt.>I ,,,-,I s tanding dues o f micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.84 . 
Tut,,' nu ls landing ducs o ther than microenlerprises and small enterprises 5.21 

5,,11-101,,1 ' .05 . 

l"ot .. I(A+lI) 133.9~ 90.5 1 



19 Debt Securities 

The Company has categorised all debt secu rities at amortised cost in accordance with the requi rements of lnd AS 109 . 

(A.) Long·Term Debt Securi ties 

(i) Institutio nal Bonds 

(ii) 54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 

(iii) T,l.~ FrL'C Bonds 

(i,,) Bo.nd Application Money pending allotment 

Sub·total fA) 

IB) Unsecured Long·Term Debt Securities 

(i) Inslilutional Bonds 

(ii) Infr.b tructure Bonds 

(iii) Forci~n Currency Bonds 

Sub·tola l (8) 

(e) Unsecured Short·Term Debt Securities 

(i) Cnnuncrcial r,lpcr 
Sub·total (C) , 

(i) [)"obi Securi ties in India 
(ii) Debt Secu rities outside India 

20 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

43, 193.78 

8,953.27 

559.50 

52,706.55 

1,95,535.29 

3.96 

32,099.81 

2,.27,6)9.()6 

2,48,245.80 
32,099.81 

43,702.31 

9,375.17 

560.95 

53,638.43 

2,02,326.03 

9.74 

32,00 1.56 

2,34,337.33 

2,55,974.19 
32,001.56 

1,955.00 

41,110.80 

8,953.27 

\ ,245.4 "1 

53,264.48 

1,72,275.29 

3.96 

32,963.75 

2,05,243.00 

2,25,543.73 
32,963.75 

" 

2,052,4(, 

'12,S.1.<;.71 

'.I,279.H2 

1,24 '1.57 

55, 1"1 . 

1,71\,119.1.911 

'l.12 

32.1\47,4(, 

2,10,950.68 

2,33,215.78 
32,847.46 

Thc Company has categorised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the r~'(I "ir~'m~'nh o( Ind 

AS III'). 

(A' 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i ii ) 

(iv) 

,81 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

Particulars 

Unsecured Long.Term Borrowings 

Term Loans from Banks 

Tl'trn l.oans (rom Finandal lnstitutions 

T~'rrn Loan in Foreign Cu rrency 

Term Lo.·m s from Government of India (NSSF) 

Sub-total (A) 

Unsecured Shorl-Term Borrowings 

FCN R (B) Loans 

Shurt Term Loans/ loans rcpayablcon demand from Banks 

Ovcrd rafts/Cash Cred it repayable on demand from Banks 

Sub-Iotal (B) 

Total - Borrowings (olher than Debt Securities) {A to BI 

Borrowi ngs (other than Debt Securities) inJ outside India 

Borrnwings il1 India 

Borrowings outside India 

Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securi ties) 

As at 30-09-2024 

Princi .. 1015 Amorliud Cost 

49, 147.56 49,329.25 

8,050.00 s.o72.28 

81,876.29 81,406.82 

10,000.00 10,326.24 

1,49,073.85 1,49,134.59 

34.816.07 34,82[.89 

4,310.00 4,312.53 

- -
39,126.07 39,134.42 

1,88,199.92 1,88,269.01 

1,06,323.63 1,06,862.19 

8 1,876.29 81,406.82 

1,88,199.92 1,88,269.01 

I~ in C n,n's 
As at 31-03·2024 

Prinei alOls "mof1iscd Cu._' 

50,612.28 50,62(1..1') 

8,050.00 H,072_2<) 

67,205.64 (>b,n2.;lI{ 

10,000.00 W.J25.12 

1,35,867.92 1,35,790.28 

25,138.67 25,151.2') 

10,875.94 IH,Klt.l.1W 

267.44 21>7.4.1 

36,282.05 36,301.77 

1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 

1,04,944.33 I,CI!',.119.h7 
67,205.64 b6,m.JII 

1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 



21 Subordina ted Liabilit ies 

Th .. Company has categorised all subordinated li .. bilitics at amortised cost in acoordanre lIIith the requiremenlsof Ind AS III'). 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(i) 

(ii) 

ra rticulars 

I 15th Series· Subordinale Tier- II Bonds-

tU16'%. Redeemable al par on 3 1.05.2023 

I 751h Series - Subo rdina te Tier·1I Bonds · 

H.97% Redeemable at paron 28.03.2029 
1991h Series - Subordinate Tier- II Bonds-

7.96% Redeemable at par 0 11 15.cl6.2roO 
222nd Series - Perpelual Tier-I Bonds -

7.9l'1'X. wi th call oplion on 30.04.2033 and on annual anniversary 

dat.. therea fter 
2261h Series - Perpetual Tier-! Bonds-

R.I)J'X. w ith call option on 30.09.2033 and on annual ann ive rsary 
Total - S ubord inated Liabilities 

Subordi nated Liabilities in! outside India 

Borrowings in India 

Borrowings ou tside India 

Tolal- Subordinated Liabili ties 

As at 30·09·2024 

Fact Valut Amortised Cost 
. . 

2, 151.20 2,220.10 

1,999.50 1,998.62 

2,000.00 2,064.89 

1,090.00 1,068.95 

7,240.70 7,372.56 

7,240.70 7,:m.56 
. . 

7,240.70 7,372.56 

(~. C '" ror~"S 

As at 3 1·03·2024 
hee Valu e Am".ti .('d Cost 

. . 

2,15 1.20 2,0')1 .');-

1,999.50 2,U41 .fln 

2,000.00 2, 145.211 

1,090.00 1 , I :tl.~ 

7,240.70 7,4 12.2 1 

7,240.70 7" 11 2.21 
. . 

7,240.70 7.4"12.2 1 



22 Olher Financial liabilities 

(AI 
(BI 

r arliculars 

Unpa id Dividends 

Unpaid Principal & Inleresl on Bonds 

- Malu red Bonds &: Inleresl Accrued thereon 

- Interest on Bonds 

Sub·lotal (B) 

Advance received towards varia tion margin (C) 

(DI Funds Received from Govemment of India for Disbursement as 

Subsidyl G rant (cumu lat ive) 

Add: Interest on such funds (net of refund) 

Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries (cumulative) 

Undisbursed Funds 10 be disbursed as Subsidyl Grant 

(EI 

(F) 

Payables towards Bonds Fully serviced by Govemment of India 

Other Li:tbilitics 

Total (A to F) 

23 Current tax liabilities (net) 

r art iculars 
Provision for Income Tal( 

Less: Ad vance Income-Ial( &: TDS 

Current tax liabilities (Net) 

24 r rovis ions 

rarticu lars 

r rovisions for 

(AI Employee Benefits 

Grilluity 

EMned Leave Liability 

Medical Leave Liability 

Settlement Allowance 

Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 

Long Service AWilrd 

Incentive 

Others 

Sull- IOlal (A) 

(BI Others 

E)( pt.· .. .'led Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 

Sull · /olal (B) 

Total (A+B) 

~ ill Cron·., 
As 01130-09-2024 As a I 3J-03-2024 

148.76 1 . 1 ~J2 .n 

25.74 22 .'1 2 
8.76 1052 

34.50 32.94 

6,993.47 4,6..11(/;(1 

98,250.12 9H,25 L7.1 

24.63 24.(, I 

(98, 184.(l9) (9H,2nD,) 

90.66 73.95 

24,317.88 24,.1HVUI 

2,645.51 1,6JI'I.ioH 
34,230.78 3 1,959.4'1 

{{ in Cror.'~ 
As at 30-09-2024 As at 31 ·03·2024 

5,267.34 .1,21\.1.K;-

(4,971.12) (J,2 17 .. 1") 
296.22 66.5 1 

/ ~ in Cror'.,~ 

As at 30-09-2024 As a t 3 1-03-2024 

2.86 (l . 1.1 

34.79 :l1.KI 

22.02 2152 
2.43 2.'10 

5.51 4.')2 

4.74 '1..<; 1 

26.n 36.')(, 

0.80 l .n7 
99.87 105.32 

24.03 32.112 
24.03 32.02 

123.90 137,34 



2S Ot her Non-Financial Liabi lit.ies 

(A) 

(B) 

(e) 
(0) 

(E) 

(F) 

Particulars 

Income Received in Advilncc 

Sundry Liilbilities Account (Funded Interes t Capitalisation) 

Unbi ll~d Liability towards Capital Account 

Unamortised Fee on Undisbursed Loons 

Advanc~ received from Government towards Govemment Schemes 

Sta tutory Dues 

Total (A to E) 

As at 3{)-09-2024 

0.1 4 

47.06 

48.38 

221.78 

0.08 

52.15 

369.59 

'" (~. t..: nlrl' ~ 
As a t 3 ]·03-2024 

-
'17.KO 

4K.JK 

KS .. 1K 

-
7K.2J 

259.7'l 



f'~rl "u L.rs 

AulhQri5"d: 

E'l 'JI'Y ~h" res of ~ 10 e,eh 

IS$~, Sub.'l".ibed .nd raid UP ! 

Full)' IMid up Equity shilR'S of f 10 ... ch 

Tota l 

27 Inslrun,en ls enti ~Jy equity in ru lu", 

f'ul icul.l"; 

t:u ll)' IM id up Perpetual o...bt. Instrumen t entirel), "'Iuil)' in natu.., of f 10 lakhs earn 

Tot.l 

28 Oth". Equity 

iA) Olher Iles"N'" 

(i) Sp • .'o:i..1 Kc.;en 'ecrut<"<l ufs36(l) ("iii) of Ihe Inro~ T~~ Acl, 19r61 

(ii) IC ........ ,·~ (, ... 11.><1 and doubtf .. 1 d_ .. /f. Jb(I)(,-ii.o}oIlhe I"""",, Tn Act, 1961 

(iii) 51.>1 .. , .. ,.,. Reserve uls ~S.ICof Reser"e lI~nk of Indlol Act. 1934 

(i,-) St""""li~~ l'r .. mium 

(v) F",ei~n C .. rrency Moneldry Ilem Tr&nslalion Difference Acrounl 

(vi) (;,. .... "I~I J,tL'5l'r'\'e 

(8) Mel~i""d Earn ingo 

ICI OIM r Compr~h~nsi\'e Income (Den 
- E'IU il )' Il1strumenlS Ihrough Other Comprehensi"~ l(\come 

- li/f,,-liw' I'orlion 01 e.,;h Flow Hedges 

- 0,,1 " I liroging reserv~ 

Tot.l - Olher Equ it.,. M+8.C1 

At al JO-06-2024 

No. of 511.,.,5 Amounl 

5.oo.ootJO.ooo S,ro:uXl 

2.6U2.N,OOO 2.633.22 

2.6l.31.1~.OOO 2.633.22 

A. ",130-06·2024 

Number 

,,,., 
,. .. 

Amoun t 

558.40 

" .. , 

29,812.41 

1,105.26 

12,31851 

l.5n.S3 
(605.61) 

12,336.28 

15,159.03 

(33.84) 

(119(1,33::1 
(460.81) 

70,318.48 

'" ,,,.," 
As .. 1.11·0]·2024 

No.ofSh"".~~ Amount 

5.00,OO.OIl,(11O \lnUll 

2.6J.l2.2~.'UI 2./,11n 

2.b3.31.2~ .r1OO 2.1>1.l.2Z 

t.n l 'r""." 
As ;>131·03·2014 

Numbe r Ano ou"l 

5.SII~ ,,<;!IAn 

'"'' 5S!1.4IJ 

If inC""""1 
As "', l HIJ·20N 

211)HHI,' 

1~~7"1, 

1U,lI211 .'''' 

IS(/ ~\ 

(r,7~. H) 

12,11"11, ]11 

1J.lfnh'. 

("1,'~!) 

(i.H~h."I) 

1",._1 ,,,,1 

bf>, I!WI./o.l 



It Inif""' l Income 

, 

'" (il 

'0 
(il 

'D, 
m 
(m 
lim 
(ivl ,., 
(vi) 

rdr1ic,,!~ .... 

[n' .... ' on Lo." A .. ,,, 

1.""1l h~'" fj .. "n<inB 

Shoo. ,,'"'' lin.n<ing 

Inrer. " r".om o from 1n>'u lme"l. 
Int ....... t r",,,, I.()IIS Term h,.estn",nlJ 

In'e.u t on O ...... ir. wir" BilIIkl 

Inl ...... , rom" o.,posilS 

O r" .. Into ,ul lncome 
h"",,,,, <I" ~I.ycd r.ymento by 1I<>rruwers 

lOll""",, /mm 51.1f Adva~ 
Inl .... .,.. IN' MotHli$.l lion AdvaflCO! 

Un .. ·,,~r'nll 01 Diornun' 01 Stculil} 0q>0si1S 

Inl"''''' I""n SPVo./AHOCi.ales 
lnlC'rc,,1 ,,,' Ad,'""" 10 p.orti .. 

Sub-roW/AI 

Sub·tal . l fB I 

Sub·lolal 10 

Sub'lotal (0 ) 

Tol.al· Inloru ' lncomo (A ,,, DI 

. l>il,,,r,·,,,1 1'0'" Long_Term [m'esl"""'!i 

To'~I· Dividend Income 

31 Fe .. ~nd Commi ts;a" Income 

31 S~,~ of or,vice. 

P •• licul .. ~ 
(:, .. ,,,1,,,,,,,· I' "K"""'''''!! S<,,'oCCO 

Toeal 

P.r1icu l .~ 

N<1 g.in/Closs) on de' I<'<'OJI"i lion oIl'rOl"'rty. rl~nl anJ Equipmenl 

Netpin/C!oss) on d i.poso' oIa.sel. d ... ilird a. held 10< $Ole 

R<ntoIllI<O"'" 
UabilitiHJI'.ovision Wnl_lUck 

F_ lron, Tr.ining C ......... 

Inl"''''' Iro"" Income T., Rd,,"" 
MiS«'Ii,,,,,,,,,,s Income 

TOI •• • 01h .. Income 

r~riod ond~d 30-09-2024 

On Finilll"al On Financial 

Al .. " A$5e1f 

m ...... ..,d.' mea.uI.d., 

fair Value AmOlliHd Cosl 

'hroughOCl 

· 2),602.26 

""'.00 
lS,6!l1.16 

· 186,84 

· 1116.84 

IS1.38 

151.3B 

110,6.) 

'" ,,. 
. 

· 0.42 

· ,.'" 
114,05 

111.139.53 

On Fin.onci. 1 

AH." mu.ur.d 
• , Fair Val ... 

l"rouB" ,...,111 or 

'M. 
· 

· 
.,,, 
40.18 

· 

· 
· 

· 

· 
"" 

0.52 

O.S! 

Peritod ended JO.09-20N 

P~riod ended !(H)IJ-lOl~ 

p • • iad ended 30-09·2014 

,us 
le.n 

95.17 

201.98 
101.98 

0.01 

.0) ,,, 
U. 
'" 

1?,1O 

37.'~ 

<t i" C" ~''''1 
r .riod ended ,1O-0~. IOI.J 

On Fin.n.I.1 On FindndJ! O n n"~"d ~! 

Au.", mu.ur.d A ... " .... u 'u .. d A".,. m .... ur .. 1 
a l Fai r Val ... . 1 Aono r1i ... d ~11·.i r".h .. 
IhrouB"OCI C o o, ''''<>UII'' r,,,[i , ... 

· 2(J,27~~ 1 

1.:1'''42 

· :Z1 •• 7&1~ 

· MU,I 

BUO 

lLll7 

· ,~, 

7451 

1AI. 

lU I 

· 0.0'1 

· If.14 

· 
77.44 

2 1,I)lo U? 

Period ended 311·(101.201.1 

Period ended JO·O'i!·IOl.l 

I. .... 

· 

· 

2" .M 

l~. hl 

· 
· 

l~.~l 

[1",(", ..... , 

7'1.7~ 

1·1 ... . 

1" II, 
'I(I •. U 

H ". t "" .... 1 

~\" .' 
1.11U1 

" "' l"~, ... 

I 1! 

'" !l.U 

'" /I. l h 

,1.11' 

11.B 



J~ fin."'~ Costs 
fin,"',-,- Costs have be.>n incurred on linanoialli.bi liti ... meo;u.ed ,It ~nl<}rtised cost, 

(in ( ',,,,,., 

Panicul.," P~.iod ended JO.n9·1UH P. riod ended 30·0Q,lOl.1 

Ii) Int~ .. SI on BOfTowing.< 
_/.,,,n; 'rom Gove,nment of Indi. (l\'SSF) 412.38 ·I l.l "I 

· /."."" • rom B~nk" Financiallmtitution. 2,45H5 1,717,H I 

• bIN,,,,1 CommerciAl Borrowing. 3.11083 2.11 ,1 1,1 

Sub·Tot.J (i) 5.981.1>ti 5.14';.41 

Inle •• ,t on n eb t S. ,uriri •• 

· o.",,,-,,, ti<· Debt Sffuri ti". 8.673_08 7,2.'i 1 ,1I 

_ F",,' i ~n Currency Debt Secu.iti ... 658.09 M,\S.I," 

· C"mn1<'"i~1 r~p<>' -1.1.% 

Sub·Tou l (ii) 9.3Jl .17 ".1.I~,P5 

(iiil In le .. " on Subordina led Li.bili lie. 
_ S"bo.di nAte Bond. 3-1.1.92 .1I IL~'1 

Sub·To l~1 (iiil 343.92 .111 15,1 

O ther ' nt .... , Ex pen •• 

- SWdP P,emium "'.~ 7111 · I~ 

· Inte",,, o n Va.iation M,"gin 211.92 II.~ 1 

1"le,rS! on Ad".n<e ln<ome TO' 11,111 

· InI O,OSI n il liabili ty to", ... d. emplol'ee benefit< '.N 1I1It, 

· Mi><'('Ii,,,,oou. interest e~ p<>n<e n. 11 

Sub-Tot.1 Hvl 869. U 717 .. ~R 

Tolal . Fin.nce Costo l ti.S l il.99 H.J~H_~ I 

Less: Finance Costs Capila li,w (Ll3) (II 211) 

Total · Finance Costs (Net) 16.52.5.86 H .. l~~.H 

35 Nel It,lM.lati onJ tuns.€tion uchonge lonl (g;oi nJ 

r eriod ended JO.(l9·101~ Period e nded ,1II·09·!OZl 

Net !r"",I" ,on/ "~ n'Action . "h.nge los" (g. in) Hl1.71 L~IS' 

L ________________________ ''''''''''-L ________________ '"""' "'"'-'-__________________ t.\n .. ~.1 

( i) 

(ii) 

(iiil 
(iv) ,., 

r.o1i<<lr ... 

liu" .. "'cc F.,., 
Lis lin)( .",,1 T.u"ee-<hip fee 

'\lle'lC)' ],,,,,, 
C.wil R'ling hp<>nses 

Otll<" i'i" ""rn Ch. rg", 
Total Ii tov) 

37 Net G.in! (10 •• 1 on hi. V~lu. Chang •• 

r.o1icul . .. 

'" N., Goinl (10 •• 1 On financial i ... trum enh a l Fair Value through pro fit 

or 10" 

On Ir.ding ro.tfolio 

Oth ... 
.Ch."'gcs in r.i. "~Iue of Dorivaliv~. 
_ Ch,lng~s in lair ,-alu. of Long Te.m Inv,", lments 

· Ch,,,,~e,; in !~i' "alueo! Short -te"" MF investmenlS 
Sub· IOU] (iii 

TotollAf 

B ••• kup of F.ir Val ue Changu 

· Real ir.e<1 
· Un •• aliSed 

Total Not GainJ (lo ... on fair V.]ue Ch.ng .. 

(f 'n l '''''''1 
r .riod ended 3()-(J9·10H Period ended JO·I}'l·IOlJ 

0.14 n~" 
0.02 011·1 
1.57 11 7~ 

2.1S 1% 

,n 10.1 ,1 

9.14 •. n 

{ iner" ... " 
r eriod ended 30.n9·lOU Period ende d .1O.0~.IOn 

14.91 11'1.r~1 

296.Hl .1 1711 

\_92 I ,~, 

183.11 15UR 

283.11 JSU8 

(531.3 4) M.'i .. 12 

820,45 /2')1.1),1) 

283.11 35U8 



33 Imp~'rm~n l on lin"";~1 inotrum~nlS 

p.,lkLlI.rs r .riod ended JO-ool·ZOU 

On fin.ncl. l lns lrumenl. m .... ur.d On fln.MI . llnslrumenl, 

Ii) 
Iii) 

· I.o~",s · 

· 1)11",,, 

T 0101 (;'iiI 

r.u;."I . .. 
I '~ .,.· . , h ,,,,,,ocs 

r . rJ lcul . .. 

· NIMic~ ."d Allow."""" 
· C""u ibLllion 10 PlDvideRt.oo 01 .... Funds 

01 FVOCI 

· 11.,..,1 t" .... ds Re5identi.1 Arromod.tlon 10' E .. ,I'Io}'ff5 

• 51.11 Well ... E,pen!oI'< 

~1 O.p.enOlion and . mor!;ulion 

r~." c"I ... 
· 1)o:1'''~· i.'lion on I',oj>erty, rl .. nt &. !!'Iuipmcnl 

· "nw" II ' .lion on Intongible " • ..,1, 

~l Co'!"'rOi. Soc;.1 Re.ponsibilily E.""n." 

r.rJicul . .. 

• n""'-I "'pendilu." 
· O",'.h" ... I. 

r.rlicul ... 
• f' •• ",dll,,~. dnd Con veyaoce 

• r"hli<ll)' &. Promoli"" E.~oses 
· R<-,,.i .... wl M"olftl.lr,a, 

· 1«-01. M" .. dnd _rg)' «>S1S 

• 1o .. "fAn« Ch'''gH 
· Comn"",oe.lion alSl$ 

• I";nlln~ &. SI.li0""'Y 
• f)i'«lo.'5~itling f_ 

· Au" ,' ... · f~and . ' P"""'" 
. 1.<1\.1 &. PfOfossi"",,1 Ch.>rges 

· I)un"'~ .... 
• N~ ll ' ' ''on !)i'poul 01 1',oj>e"Y. Plonl &. Equlpn-cnl 

· TI,,'ninlt "nd Co nference E'P<'n ... 

• Go""""',,,"1 Scheme Mon'lOling E~I,.,n_ 
· ()!he. F'pcnditure 

m ... ured 01 Amort; •• d COSI 
. 319.49 

9.0] 

llS.5Z 

l'erlod end.d JG.Ot-IOH 

TOI.1 

reriod end.d 3O-ooI·Z024 

To. 

reriod end.d 31H19·l0H 

Toto.l 

r e. iod ended ~·1DH 

T •• 

r • • iod endedJIHI9·10H 

Toto] 

/ 1'" ( ' ''K''') 

r eriod end.d 3O·09 -20n 

On fin.ncl . llnIIrUm. nlO O n rin.",d.lln.trLln,enlo 
m .... Llr~d.1 FVOCI m"'""s .... <I.1 Am",".-" C,"I 

. 7l~, ,11 
~ 1·1 

7OJ_lI> 

j),,,n'K .... 1 
r .riod end ",d lD.ooJ.ZOn 

"''' "n 'JI 
?<I.SS "9.U 

jl ill e " ",', I 
r eriod ~nd ", d 30·1)11 ·101.\ 

' ''' "AA 
17.69 nm 

'" 1'" 
26.8$ I~ n 

1I7.8G 10Ul 

11 .,, ( "~,,, ) 

reriod end"d 3O·I)II· ZDll 

11 .75 II I~ , 

0.15 11'11 

IUD 11.'7 

/1 in ( " . .... 1 
r e riod end e d )0-0<1.101.\ 

,,-" II 7 / 

'-" '" u,7I. . ~J~ 

P.riod e nded .10·))'I·}01.1 
I ill l"rn,," ) 

I H~ ~ ,", 
15,08 I,~ l 

U.99 11 II 

'" JI,~ 

'-" III~ 

". '" , ... li n 
." .. } I 
,~ ,,~ 

." " . • m 
3.25 , .' 
5. 11 7.~1 

10.01 ~ 1"-

10.77 11111, 
U,S M. JO 



r~r1 icul~rS r~riod ended JO..Ot.10U r~riad ~nd ed .1CI·~101J 

· l,: .... e,,"a. e.pense' 2.0U.-IO 

. C" .. e,lI M" e.~(bmriil) pl'l'1.inipg 10 ~.,Iio, y. ... 

Sub·lolal· Cu"enl T ... 2.0I U O I .S~b.U 

(65,69) 2",1.' 

L ____ ______ ___ ___________ 'Co:':·C'L _______________ C'c·'C·:'C','-'-_________________ ' ·~no,n 

r . rl;culn. 

I',,~i' (or Ihe J·r., I,om conlinuing ",-a'ion ... ~~. SI.,cn",n l olr.ofill 

dlkll ,," (~i " C.o.rs)· 

1'",li ' I", the ye., hom di~ont inued ol"',aliOOl .s 1"" S'a 'em,,'" 01 
I',,,lil .m<l 1.0<. (I in C.o. res)" 

I'",fi' I,,.. Ihe YH. (,on, oon';"uing .,ld disco",;nued 01"' •• lio"s ... pI'I' 

SlA,~" ... "t of rroli,.nd lo .. (I inCmrres)' 

Dcnomin. tor 
Wtigh,,,,! .,·e'''ge Numbt. 01 "'Iu;' rshMn 

lJ.."k· &. ()il u lOO hrning! 1"" Share (in ! 101 a" tqllily sh.,e 01 t 10 ~.ch) 

(/0' ",n r; "uing opc .. ,io". ) 

H.,,,, &. Diluted F. .. nings P'" Share (in I for.n equily s ho re 01 I 10 ... h) 

l
~fOf ,ti"'on linued ope<'llion5) 
1J..>si< &. Oilu'...t hrnipg5 fH'" Share (in (Io<.n "'lui,)· , h;"e""! lOeadl) 
for ",nlinuin Mld dilC'Olllinurd 0 .,ions 

P"';od endrd _·10H 

2.63.11.HOOO 

28.~7 

,.." 

reriod e nded Jo.(I't·IOll 


